Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: | | / G /d’Ol i Estimate of time required: ) minu+ €S

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,
2013,

2. Recommended motion
Staff Recommends County Commissioners approve report as presented.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: Audit Report Storey County, Nevada June 30, 2013

6. Fiscal impact: Creates possible Augmentation in excess of 1 million dollars.

Funds Available: Fund: _x_ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

-
[P S—

Agenda Ttem No. \ 1




Audit Report

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

June 30, 2013




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL SECTION _
Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements
Governinent-wide Financial Statements
Statement-of Net Assets
Statemenit of Activities
Fund Financial Statements;
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Reconciliationof the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the.
Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balanegs - Budget and Actual
“(General Fund
Road Fund
Fire Fund
Tri Payback Fund
Virginia City Tourism Commission
Business Type Activities, Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
Notes to Financia! Statements
Supplementary information;
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmenta 1 Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ir
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Gevernmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
Special Revenue Funds:
Fire District
Equipment Acquisition
Indigent Assistance
Justice Court Fees
Drug Court
Indigent Medical Fund
Park Tax
Jail Building
Emergency Mitigation
Indigent Accident
Technology
Town of Virginia City
Town of Gold Hill
Federal Grants
Fire Emergency
Stabilization
Genetic Marker Testing
Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects
Infrastructure Capital Projects Fund
Virginia City Rail Project

F;U
=]
W=l

v co

16
21
22
23
24

25
26
27

28
29

41

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
35
56
37
58
59
60
61
62
63

64
65
66




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL SECTION (cont’d.)
Enterprise Funds:
Water System Fund
Revenues and Expenses
Cash Flows
Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District
Revenues and Expérise
Cash Flows
Fiduciary Fund Types:
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds
Comparative Schedules of General Fixed Assets )
By Source
By Function and Activity
Schedule of Changes by Fimction and Activity
Schedule of General Obligation Bonds

COMPLIANCE SECTION
Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And-On Compliance And
Other Matters Based On An Audif Of Financial Statements Performed In

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
Auditors Report On Prior Year's Recommendations
Auditors Report On Current Year’s Recommendations

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and On
Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Notes to Schedule.of Federal Financial Assistance

Page

67
68

69
70

71

72
T3
74
75

77
79
80

g1
83
85
86




DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

CARSON CITY OFFICE RENO OFFICE
3250 RETAIL DRIVE, SUITE 135 646 HUMBOLDT STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706 MEMEER RENO, NEVADA 89509
TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 329-7800
FAX NUMBER (775) 882-2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMBER (775) 329-8332
EMAIL - dapcpattdec@gmail.com NEVADA SOCIETY OF EMAIL - dapcpaltd@gmail.com

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statemnents of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretelypresented component units, cachmajor find, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey
County, Nevada, as of and for ‘the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ameriea; this includes the design, implementafion, and
‘maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparationand fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

-Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial staterents based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States'of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are fiee from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the enlity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemenis,

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fond information of Sterey County, Nevada, as of June 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable; cash flows thereaf for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-7 and16-24 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements'in an appropriate operational, ecanomic, or historical context. We have applied certainlimited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in-the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparirig the
information for consistency with management’s responses o our ifquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial staterents. We do not €Xpress-an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide. us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion ot provide any assurance,

OCther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Storey
County, Nevada’s basic financial statemenis. The introductory section, combining and individual nontajor fund financial,
and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposed of additional analysis as required
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Staiés, Local Govermments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statemerits,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statemerits and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statemerits and c¢rtainadditional procedures, including comparing-and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and otherrecords used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional proceduresinaccordance with auditing standards generally
acceptedin the United Statesof America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonthajor fund financial statements
and the schedule of expenditures of-federal awardsare fairly stated in 4ll material respectsin relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we.do not express an opinion or provide any assurance-on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 6, 2013, on our
consideration of Storey Counity, Nevada’s internal control over financial reporting and on ouif tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that
testing, and not to provide an opinjon on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government duditing Standards in considering Storey County,
Nevada’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. :

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
‘Carson City, NV
September 6, 2013




COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As matiagement.of Storey County, State of Nevada, we offer readers of Storey County’s financial statements this
overview and analysis of Storey County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*  The assets of Storey County exceeded its liabilities by$30,835,241.

*  The County’s unrestricted net assets increased § 2,320,828

* At June 30, 2013, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $7,433,142.

*+  Storey County’s bonded debt at June 30; 2013 was $2,371 .226 which was $614,6356 in revenue bonds of
the County’s Enterprise Funds a Medium term (7 yr.) General obli gation bond of $148,570, and Virginia
City Rail Bonds of $1,608,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussionand analysis are intended to serve as an introductionto Storey County’s basic financial statements. These
basic financial statements iriclude (1) Government-Wide Financial Statements (2) fund financial statements, and {3) notes
to the financial statements. Other supplementary information is also-available inthis report,

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of Storey County’s finances in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets is information on all of Storey County’s asseis.and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported &s net assets. Over time, increases in net assets may serve as an‘indicator to show if the financial
position of Storey County is improving or declining,

The Statement of A¢tivitiesnotes information as to how the government's net-assets changed during the last fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as-soonas the event causing the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported for some items that result in cash flows infiture periods, (e.g. earned,
unused vacation)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of Storey County that are mainly supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that recover their costs through user fees
and charges. The governmental activities of Storey Countyincluded general government, publicsafety, roadsand streets,
judicial and, culture and recreation. The business activities (enterprise funds) are the water and sewer.

‘The Government-Wide Financial Statements canbe found in this report on pages 8 and 9.

Fund Financial Statements. Funds are groupings of related accounts and is used to maintain control over resources
segregated for specific activities orpurpose. Storey County uses fund accounting to.ensure compliance with state and
federal finance related requirements. The fimd types.of Storey County are as follows; governmental; enterprise; and
fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used fo account for the functions reported as governmental activities,
in the Government-Wide Financial Statements, Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund
statements focus on near term inflows of expendable resources and on balances of expendable resources at the end of
the fiscal year. This information helps with decisions as to near term financing needs.

The focus of governmental fuiids is narrower than the Government-Wide Financial Statements. It is useful to compare
the information for governmental funds with similar information for goveinmental activities in Government-Wide
Financial Statements, Readers will betterunderstand the long-termitpact of governments near-termfinancing decisioris.
The governmental fund Balance Sheetand governmental fund Statemient of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund
balances allow this comparison between governmental finds and activities.




Storey County has twenty-four governmental funds. Financial information is stated separatelyin the governmental fund
Balance Sheet and in the governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund balances, for the
general fund and four other funds considered major funds. Data from the other twenty governmental funds are combined.
Individual fund data for non-major governmental funds are reported in combining statements in this report.

Storey County adopts an annual budget for all the above funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for all funds to show compliance with the budget.

The governmental fiinds financial statements can be found in this report on pages 11 through 24.

Enterprisefunds. Storey County operatestwo enterprise funds, Waterand Sewer. These funds are reported as business
type activities, reported inthe Government-Wide Financial Statements,

Enterprise funds are presented on pages 25 tlirough 27.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary fands are used to account for resources held for other entities. Fiduciary funds are not
reported in the government-wide financial statement as the resources do not support Storey County’s needs. The cash
basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in this report on page 28.

Notes to the financial statements, The notes in this report provide additional information necessary for a full
understanding of the information provided in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The notes can be found on
pages 29 through 40.

Other informatign, The combining and individual fund statements and schedules for major governmental funds can

be found on page 16 through 24 of this report. This sarne information for norni-major governmental funds can be found
on pages 41 through 66 of this report.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NET ASSETS
Governmental Business Type .
Activities Activities Total
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 June 30,2013
Current and gther Assets $19,623,337 51,315.290 % 20,938,627
Cupital Assets 52050349 5.788.541 57.838.860
Total Assets 8 T.673,656 § 7103831 $78.777.487
Long TFerm Liabilities
Outstanding $ 45,843,992 5 557,098 346,401,090
Current Liabilities 1,418,512 122 644 1,541,156
Total Liabilities $ 47.262,504 5 679.742 $47,.942.246
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 8,002,439 $ 5,173,885 513,176,324
Unrestricted 16408713 1,250,204 17.658.917
Total Net Assets $24411152 § 6424089 $30.835.241




REVENUES:

Program Revenues:
Charges For Services
Operating Grants and Contribitions
Capital Grants.and Contributions

General Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
General Government
PublicSafety
Judicial
Health and Welfare
Cultureand Recreation
Conmmunity-Support
Highwitys & Streets
Water and Sewer

Total Expenses
Changes In Net Assels
Net Assets - beginning

Net Assets - ¢nding

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental
Activities
June 30, 2013

$2,842,740
324,581
574,271

11412,049
2,862,918
1274607

19,291,166

3,987,100
9,180.547
778.385
195.924
312.866
485.199
2313.826
0

17:258 847
2,037,319
22,373,833

524411.152

Business Type
Activities
June 30,2013

§ 702,666

152,428

17,208

872302

——ll

650271
650.271
222,031
.0.202.0358

3 6,424,089

Total
June 30,2013

§ 3,545,406
324,581
726,699

11,412,049
2,862,918
1291815

20,163,408

3,987,100

9,180,547
778,385
195,924
312,366
485,199

2313,826
630,271

Bl e i -

17.904.118
2,259,350

28575391

$30.835241

ot et el




Revenues in the General Fund were $10,928,991 which was $329,774 more than the-amount budgeted. Actual revenue
exceeded budgeted amounts in‘all budget categories except taxes. Actual expenditures were $8,703,384, which was
$707,068 less than appropriations for the vear, Overall,. thie total ending fund balance was $7,433,142 which is
$1,661,991 more than budgeted. Ofthe $7,433,142 ending ihnd‘baiances $ 0 was desigriated as an opening fund balance
on July 1, 2013 and $0 was reserved on July 1, 2013.

PERCENT TOTALS - ALL FUNDS

® Taxes
& Grants & Contributions

B Charges for Services

57% &/ Interest and Cther

& Ihtergovernmental

B Transfer VCTC

269% 3% 4y ' B Utliity Service
' & Judicia)

% Highways & Streets

8 Culture & Recreation

¥ Health & Welfare

& Community Support

& Public Safety

499 B General Government




Business Type Activities. Business-type activities increased Storey County’s net assets by $69,603. Depreciation -
expense for the current fiscal year was $146,197.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds. Asnoted earlier, Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus of Storey County’s governmental fands is to provide information on near term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Storey County’s financing
requirements. In particolar, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Budgetary Highlighis-Fiscal Year June 30, 2013. The budget statements reflecta comparison of budgeted revenues
and expenditures to actual for the year ended June 30, 2013. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget
as filed with the Nevada Departinent of Taxation. Budget revenues and expenditures were adjusted for grants received
in excess of original amounts budgeted. Augmentations and line item transfers were made during the year as approved
by the Storey County Commijssioners.

The General Fund revennes were more than expectations by $329,774, leaving a fund balance of $7,433,142.
General Fund budget information can be found on pages 16 through 20.
Capital Assets. Storey County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June

30, 2013 amounts to $57,838,860 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets inclndes land,
buildings, and syslem, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, ard bridges.

STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
CAPITAL ASSETS
JUNE 30,2013
Gavemnmendal Business Type
Activities Activities Total
June 30,2013 June 30, 2013 June 30,2013
Land $ 387759 5 387759
Antique Furnjture ' 75.000 75,000
Construction in Process 2229317 2229317
Buildings and Improvements 7,268,956 7.268,956
Limprovements other than Buildings 029,406 929,406
Machinery and Equipment 1,505417 3 149,580 1,655,003
Sewer and Water systens 5,638,955 5,638,955
Infrastructure 39,654 464 39.654.464
Total $52,060.319 $ 5,788,541 $57.838.860

Other Highlights-Fiscal Year June 30, 2013. On August 3, 2011, Storey County issued $2,000,000 worth of General
Obligation Bonds for the purpose of completing the Virginia and Trackee Railroad Tunnel #6 for the purpose of
extending the railroad line to the old Freight Dépot. Fuads were received on December28, 2011 witha payback period
endinig June 1, 2028, As of this date no constriction has commenced due to construction bids which were deemed too
expensive. However, minor bonds proceeds have been used for design and -engineering costs. Attempts to solicit
additional bids are inthe process.

In December of 2000 Storey County entered into a Public-Private partnership with Tahoe Regional Industrial Center for
the development of an industrial park. In April of 2011 Storey County agreed to accept expenses for infrastructure in
the amount of $46,850,563. In addition, a payment of $2,400,000 was paid in accordance with the Developer
Agreement. A payment of $838,459 was made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Storey County, Nevada’s finances for all those with.
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests

for additional financial information should be addressed to Storey County Comptroller, P.O. Box 432, Virginia City,

Nevada 89440, telephone nismber (775)847-1006, e-mail Hgallagher@StoreyCounty,org

Comiptroller




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT CF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2013
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS '
Cash § 18,575,766 % 1,244,809 19,820,575
Accounts receivables (net allowance), B8R 114 68,081 956,195
Taxes receivable 133,864 153 864
Inventory 5,393 5,593
Prepaid expenses 2.400 2,400
Capital assets - nét of accumulated depreeiation
Land 387,759 387,759
Anfigue furmniture 75,000 75,000
Construction in progress 2,229,317 2229317
Buildings and improvement(s 7,268,956 7,268,956
linprovements othér than buitdings 929,406 929,406
Utility system 3,638,955 3,638,935
Machinery and equipment 1,505.417 149,586 1,655,003
Infrastructure 39,654,464 39654464
Total Assets $ 71673656 % 7,103,831 78,777,487
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable and ather current liabilitics § 1,262,823 % 65,086 1,327,909
Non-current liabilities
Bonds/Notes payable ~ due within oneyear 155,689 57,558 213,247
-dug in more than one year 1,888,086 357,098 2,443,184
Compensated absences - due in more than dne year 150,186 150,186
Other non-current liabilities 193,615 [93,_6'1-5
[nfrastructure loan 43,612,105 43.612.105
Total Liabifities. $ - 47262504 679,742 47,942 246
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of refated debt kY 8,002,439 % 5,173,885 13,176,324
Unrestricted 16,408,713 1,250,204 17.658.917
Total Net Assets $ 24411152 § 6.424.089 30,835,241

The notes fo financial statemérits are
an integral part of this statement.

)




Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

PROGRAM REVENUES
COPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES EOR SERVICES CONTRIBUTIGNS CONTRIBUTIONS
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:
Governmental activitics:

General government ¥ 3,987,100 § 1,628,145 % 140,607 20271
Public safety 9,180,547 1,112,497 29.025 244 809
Judicial 778,385 165,253
Health and Welfare 195,924
Culture and recreation 312,866 230 54,397 60,645
Community support 485,199 100,352
Highways and streets 2.513,826 101,848 74,293

Total Governmental Activities 17,253,847 2 842 740 324,581 314271

Business type aclivities:

Water 418,211 488,198
Sewer 232,060 214,468

Total Business-Type Activities 650,271 702,666
Total Primary Government g 17,904,118 § 3545406 § 324,581 574,271

The notes te financial statements are
an integral part of this starement.

9




STCREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NET{EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:
Governmental activitics:
-General government 5 (2,18%,07D): $ (2,189,077
Public safety (7,794.216) { 7,794,2}_6)
Jadicial (613,132) {613,132)
Health and Welfare (195,924) {193,924}
Culure and recreation (197.57) {197,.574)
Community support (384,647) (384,647
Highways and streets (2.137,685) (2,i37,685)
Totn] Governmental Activities {13.512,255} {13,512,255)
Business type activitics:

Water $ 69,987 69,987
Sewer (17,592) (17.592)

Total Business-Type Activities 52,395 52,395
Total Primary Government {13,512,233) 52,395 (13.459,860)

General revenues:

Property Taxes 11,412,049 11,412,049

Various State Collected Pass-Through Revenues 2,862,918 2,862918

Interest Earnings 41,232 5,208 46,440

Loan Proceeds 28,782 28,782

Transfer in from Virginia City

Convention and Tourism Authority 632,335 632,335

Prior Period Adfustment 24,000 24,000

Miscellaiieous Revenue 548,258 12,000 560.258

Capital Conitributions and Grants 0 152,428 152,428

Total General Revenues 15,549,574 169.636 15,719,210

Change in Neét Assets - 2.037.319 222,051 2,259,550

Net Assets - beginning ) 22.373,833 6,202,058 28,575,891

Net Assets ~ending 5 24411152 % 6424089 & 308357241

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statemical,

10

Page2of2




Fl

owes sup o ted reidoy e
D12 SJUDLIANEIS [BIDUBTY 0] 503007 D1y |,

TeRe0TT 3

LECETOSl  § 3072689 § 911°999 3 S09°15€ $ QI § 0LE'SRE'S ¢
668'988°L1 PLEEES FIOSIY PER'60ET 199°6T ¥S0°991°T THLCEP L
$8¢'66L% SS6'8L8'T RO IE] F68°601°Z 199°67 FSO'991°[
601'¥59°e 691°p59°¢ .
THTEEP'L THICEr'L
REF 9L’ PRO6SE Z60°IE 0 Y6’ [TE 060°TS 8TTTECH
000°08T 000087
$19°¢61 1ZF' 1 9601 £68°051
000'7LY A% 21 . #6581 0E0° 168
<78°06% $ £99°Lp€ $ 89797 $ 0 8 g 96¢'c 5 £0<'0€1 3
LEEETO6E  § B0T'Z689  § 911999 7 68601 0§ S09°15E [3 PPIRITT $ 0L€'6858 ¢
£65°S £65'¢ .
$98°€51 0R°S| 5%t 616'601
FIT'88% 8L0°SHI 9 88L'cey 990°cg 9L597E
991°6LS°8] % 9TC'CEL'9  § L15°099 $ O8G0I & (FETEEID) $ E7AV R o R S SL8'8p0'8 §
SANE SUNNA aNnd AN ANt anNndg LR ENED)
IVENIANFIAOD IVINTNNITIAOD DDA MOVEAVIIYL EEIE avoy
TV.LOL VAHLO
E10T 0L AN
SANA TYINFWNITAQCD

LI3HS IONVIVE

YAVAIN "ALNNOD AFEOLS

SPIE[EE PUnS Pl SII{IqerT (210

soouejeg

spuny
spinj

soy|

pui] [eloL

ONUPAI e1oodg
syoaford enden
punj [ejousry

. potodor paudissenn)

SHONYIVH ONNA
1qer] pelo |,

a[qeied 530N

anina1 pasiafa(]
sasuadya pantooy
sigeded siunoooy

SONHIgel]

§

HONVIVE ONNT NV STET VT

SISSY [10

A¥osuaAu]
D[UBATIDI SOXE |

{20UBMO}[E 19U} I[GBATANR STUNDISY

sey
SJLdSsV




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Total Fund Balance - governmeént funds - page 11 $ 17,886,899

Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets net of related depreciationare not

reported in the Governmental Funds financial

statements because they are not current financial

resources, but they are reported in the statément.

of net assets 52,050,319

Long terin labilities are mt due and payable in the,
current period and therefore are not reported-in

the fands. {45.526.055)
Total Net Assets - governmental activities - page 8 $ 24411.152

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this staiement.

12




3o a8eg

uswels sup Jo ted jeifong ue
Qe SIUDITEIS JEOURL] Of SOU DY,

T6T RSl (69T°67) (et (ors'pes) S0E'Ell (P61'66} LOGETTE
LSLLYT LI 69165 LSVL8Y 65H'8E8 POT'196°C $88°€99 FRECOLS
£99°LTE FOL'88E 796'8T
980°3L7 980'8LT
$48°¢99 788°€09
661°58p 661°58Y
156°262 EPLIST B0E°041
$T6°S61 LER'6PL 1809t
$8E'8LL 090°€ $TECLL
LIPS LTE6SS'T POT196°C I61°279°¢
A0S S1PT51 LSYi8t 651°8€8 TIES09'E
6v0'909°81 006.£95° IEDLY £16°¢ 605 710"y 06E'+95 166°87601
$01°68% 189941 S8E°8I LLSTL 0eLIT CE8'661
£9L001 S05°¢8 LEB'YI
0L0° 1T oFTL I¥L'58 061°680°1 SPR101 SYO'ELL
0LLTI9L°E cLi'ezs 9€T'91E 098°168 Ty 68T°6EET
0LoT1EL 36761 LOE'ET 6LE'SH
EOTIF L 5 SELOF| g £16'¢C 3 SLTLEDT 996'€96° L §

SANAA SUNI AN AN AN aNnd TYHANTD

TYININNEIAQD  IVINIWNHIIAOD JLIA MOVHAVI-L guid avod
TVLOL AHAHLO

€102 ‘O£ ANNT AFANT UVIA IHL HO4

SANMN TVINIWNIZAOD

SHONVIVE NN NI STDONVHD ANV STINLIANAIXT “SANNTATYE O INHAWILLY LS
YAOVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS

SAHIPUAxe JOAG SHNHIASL JO {Asuero1)op) ssaoxg

SenRIpUSUNT JBI0 ],

201At38 00
LaliclitlianRt s autiyt
$192115 pue skemuBiy
LS AYUn Wity
UOTIEINAL PUE QITHNY)
QIBf[2M UL iBO[H
[Br21pns
Alajesangng
JuauIsA0F _Eu.:wb

SUALIRY)

SIANLIONTIXT

SHNUSADY JRIO

SNOPURI[OISIIN
saimiagiof pue souty
$901A105 Jog soreyn

[eruauiuroaoiozay
Snuuad pue sasuaory
saxey

SHNNIATY




¥l

"RrauReIs sy Jo ped [eiSanu ue
QB SJUMUDIES [RIDUBNL] O SOJOU 2y}

668°988°L1 3 PTILES'S [ PZOSLO 3 FPoB'E0IC % 199°6% g ¥S0'9517 A RS T Fuwpus - aoueeq pun.g
06t CPR¢1 TLY9EL'D 0 gLe gt BEVEVE SST'T86 RN Auuuidang - saueleq puny
SOY'EHOT (8vccoT) PTO'SIO 915867 (82L°THT) 66L°C81 961°292'1 osuereq puny u) 28ueno 19
LI1°CR9 {6L0°FLL) SECZED 790°EE L {€80°9ze) £67£87 (1ErE96) (s35(1) $901n0G Sussumury 1nQ 10,
000°HT . 000" uRusHpr potad 1oug
0 18210101 puogy
THL'BT 88T spaoosd puosy
0 sposoosd (sjuawsed) veop uusl yoyg
(9p9°CSH1) {198°202) (ZoL'zios) 100 S19)SUBT |
186°¢80°C SEETEY TI0'ECH'] £6TC8T 167°5¢ U SIagsuel]
(§FSN) STFEN0OS DNISNVNIT 94010
SaNM SANfY] anNn4 ANt anNN4d NI TVAANTD
TYLNIWNYIAOD TV LNTNNAIAOD QLA HOVHAVI-TUL q414 avod
TVIOL UAHLO

€107 "0€ ANNS QIANT YVAX FHL O
SANIA TYLNTWNNITAOD
STONYIVE ONNA NESTONVED (NY STUMLIANTIXA ‘SHINIATY 40 INGWALVLS
VAVAIN ALNNOD ATIOLS

2 Jo 7 a8ey




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE $STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances -'governmental funds, page 14 § 2,043,409

Amounts reported for povernmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in

governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs

are shownin the statement of net assets and a;ll'o__caf_e:ci'owr

their estimated vseful lives-as depreciati'on'exp‘ehjse in the

stafemnent of activities, This is the amount by which net

capital oltlays exceeded depreciationin the current period. (840,278)

Net long-term receipts and payments.reporied in
governmental funds as expenditures 838,459

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not

reported as expenditures in governmental fands (4.271)
Change in net assets of governmental activities, page 10 $§ 2037319

The notes to financial statements are
an'ifitegral part of this statement

15




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property
Youth Services
Total Taxes

Licenses and permits:

Merchandise licenses
Prostitution licenses
Liguor licenses
Utikity licenses
Franchige tax
Building permits & study
Special use permits
Other ticenses
Total Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental:

Federal and state grants
Pavment in licu of taxes
State shared revenues:
Cigaretie lax
Liguor tax
Gaming licenses
Basic CCRT
Supplementat CCRT
Motor Vehicle Priviledge Tax
Real Property Transfer Tax
Total Intergovernmental

Charges for Services:

Clerk Fees
Recorder fees
Asscssor fecs/commissions
Building depariment fees
District Court Fees
Justice court fees
JOP Court Facility fee.
Sheriffs fees
‘Dog control
Swimming poal admissions/lessons
Park facilities fees
Import tonnage fees
1T Fees
Event fees
Total Charges for Services

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH

FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL ANDFINAL  ACTUAL POSITIVE

BUDGETED AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
8103528 $ 7942480 $ (161,048)
21,484 21,086 {398)
8,125,012 7,963,566 (161,446)
120,000 105,503 (i4.495)
75,000 1,139 {3,861)
0 190 190
165,000 156,426 (8,574)
60,000 62,129 2,129
155,000 241,125 86,125
5,000 11,865 6,865
11,800 i {11,800}
591,800 648,379 56,579
30,429 30,564 135
30,000 35,261 5,261
17,381 17,163 216)
5113 5221 108
0 137,099 137,099
305,497 327,685 22,188
451,116 459,698 8,582
250,540 261,513 10,973
46,108 55.085. 8,975
1,136,184 1,329,289 193,105
6,000 5812 {188)
30,000 32,543 2,543
150,000 86,220 36,220
6,000 3,440 {2,560)
10,000 15,871 5371
5,000 11,201 2,201
3,000 7.634 2,634
35,000 30,336 (4.664)
2,000 1.135 (863)
17,060 17,528 528
500 100 (400)
350,000 372,969 22,969
75,721 85,451 5,730
0 2,805 2,805
696,221 773,043 76,824

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

16

Page 1 of 5




Page 2 of 5

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH

FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL AND FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS AMOUNTS | (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES {cont'd.} '
Fines and Forfeits:
Distriet fine 1,000 782 (218)
Juvenile fines/assessments 2,000 1,790° 210)
Chemical analysis fees 2,500 2,399 (101}
Forfeits { 9.906 9,906
Total Fines and Forfeits 5,500 14,877 9,377
Miscellaneous:
Rents 30,500 31,416 916
Penalties - Taxes 9 103,982 103,982
Penalties - Business Licenses 1,000 933 {63)
Interest 10,000 33,770 25,770
Other 3,600 27,732 24.732
Total Miscellaneous 44,500 199,833 155,335
Total Revenues 10,599.217 10,928,991 329,774
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Commissicners:
Salaries and wages 316,516 385,304 (68,788
Employvee benefits 161,096 155,432 5,664
Services and supplies 27250 23,399 3,851
504,862 564,135 (39,273)
Clerk Treasurer:
Salaries and wages 161,395 170,223 (8.828)
Employee benefits 75,766 73,822 {56}
Services and supplies 57,088 38.045 19,043
Capital outlay 0 3,815 (3.815)
292,249 285,905 6,344
Recorder:
Salaries and wages 132,936 119,716 13,220
Employes benefits 68,622 53,880 14,742
Services and supplies 38,840 54,420 4,420
260,398 228,016 32382
Assessor:
Sataries and wages 194,161 194,965 {804)
Employee benefits 89,515 80,853 8,662
Services and supplies 37,550 28289 9,261
321,226 304,107 17,119
Adminisirative:
Salarics and wages 91,675 88 885 2,750
Emptoyec benetits 154,429 157,843 (3414
Services and supplies 796,619 607,179 189,440
Capital outlay 9,000 1,331 7,669
1,057,723 855,238 196,485

The notes to financial siatements are
an integral part of this stalement.

17




Page 3 of 5

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH

FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL AND FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS AMOUNTS {NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General Governiment {costd,)
Building and Grounds:
Salaries and wages 127213 111,489 13,724
Employee bencfits 76,349 55,347 21,202
Services and supplies 173,510 144,578 28,932
) 371,272 311,414 63,858
Planning Commission;
Salarics-and wages 147,338 139,444 7.894
Emplayee benefits 54,315 49011 5,304
Services and supplies 31,800 22,236 9,564
233,453 210,691 22,762
Service;
Salaries and wages 140,234 132,32} 7913
Employee benefits 64.024 47,999 16,025
Services and supplies 51,131 52,385 (1,252)
235,38% 232,703 22,686
Comptrotler:
Salaries and wages 172298 173,794 (1,496)
Employee benefits 61,924 58,424 3,500
Services and supplies 63,000 45.656 17,344
Capital outlay 3,000 317 2683
300,222 278,191 23,031
Information technology:
Salaries-and wages 178,256 182,711 (4.455)
Employees benefits 78,016 79,563 {1,547)
Services and supplies 38,650 36,530 2,100
Capital outlay 40,000 36,088 3,912
334,922 334,912 10
Total General Government 3,931,716 3,005,312 326,404
| Judicial:
| District Altorney:
Salaries and wages 252,758 230,334 22424
| Employee benefits 116,210 88.663 27,547
Services and supplies ' 92,600 78,298 14,302
Capital quilay 14,500 7,111 7,389
476,068 404,406 71,662
District Court:
Services and supplies 139417 167,847 31,370
139417 107,847 31,370

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

18




EXPENDITURES
Judicial (contd.)

Justice of the Peace:
Salaries and wiiges
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total Judicial

Public Safety:
SherifT:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Servicesand supplies
Capital outlay

Community Development
Salaries and wages
Employzee benefits
Services and supplies

Emergency Management:
Salaries and wages
Emplayee benefits
Services-and supplies

Communications
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplics
Capital outlay

Total Public Safety

Health;
Home Healih:
Services and supplies

Culture and Recreation:
Swimming Pools & Parks
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND N
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BURGET
ORIGINAL AND FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
151,904 162,124 (10,2200
73,530 76,194 {2,664)
13,222 24,754 8,468
1,000 0 1,000
259,636 263,072 (3,416)
875,141 775.325 99816
1,398,309 1,334,148 64,161
825315 736,970 88,3435
277,050 798,814 (21.764)
105,000 66,877 38,123
2,603,674 2,436,809 168,865
241,492, 236,697 4,795
107.807 101,755 6,052
34.875 31,340 3,535
384,174 369,792 14,382
80,704 83,359 {2,6553)
41,491 35,291 6,200
11,400 8,500 2,800
133,595 127,250 6.343
482,389 424,144 58,445
197,145 171,814 25,331
66,700 62,530 4,170
40,000 29,852 10,148
786,434 688,340 98,094
3,909,877 3,622,191 287,686
72,507 46,087 26,420
51,846 54,917 (3.071)
15,706 11,106 4,600
56,620 74,285 (17.663)
124,172 140,308 (16,136)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

19

Paged of 5




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Total Culture and Recreation

Community Service
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and-supplies
“Total Commumity Support

Debt Service:
Principle
Imicrest
Total Debt Service

Total Expenditures
Exeess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transters in
Transfers out
“Contingency
Prior period adjusement
Total Other Fipanicing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

BUDGET AND-ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL AND FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

124,172 140,308 (16,136)

87,724 100,091 (12,367)
38,872 33,524 5,348

353,700 351:584 2,116

480,296 485,190 (4,903)
15,983 15,637 346

760 13,325 (12,565)

16,743 28962 (12219
9,410,452 8,703,384 707,068
1,188,765 2,225,607 1,036,842
25291 25,291 0
1,012,702) {1,012,702) 0
(282,314) G 282314
0 24,000 24,000
{1,269,725) (963,411) 306,314
(80,960) 1,262,196 1,343,156
5,852,111 6,170,946 318,835

$ 5771151 $ 7433142

3 1,661,991

The notes 1o financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

20

Page 5 of 5




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
ROADS SPECIAL REVENUEFUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL, AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Intergovernmental
Gasoline tax $ 45951 % 158842 % 12,891
Supplementat CCRT 281,947 282,370 423
Intergovernmental agreement
Charges for services
Import tonnage fees 96,000 101,848 5,848
Other revenoe
Interest 1,000 4,464 3,464
Miscellaneous 1,000 16,366 15,866
Total Revenue 325,898 564,390 38.492
EXPENDITURES
Highways-and streets
Salaries and wages 301,860 270,773 31,087
Employée benefits 121,465 97,618 23,847
Services and supplies 89.693 104,965 (£5.270)
Capital cuitlay 472,184 107,206 364,978
Debt service
Pringipal 74,286 74,286 0
Interést 9,007 9,036 (29
Total Expenditures 1,068,497 663,884 404,613
Excess-(deficieticy) of revenues over expenditures (542,599) (99,494) 443,105
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers 283,293 283,293 0
Excess (deficiency) of reverivies and other financing
sources aver expendilures {259,306) 183,799 443,105
Fund balance - beginning 640,864 982,235 341,391
Fund batance - ending 3 381,558 % 1,166,054 § 784,496

The noles to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

2]




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND'CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property $ 2,074.814 $ 2,074,814 $ 2037275 % (37.539)
Intergovernmental reventes
Supplemental CCRT 750,871 750,871 851,860 100,989
Licenses and permils
; Ambulance program & license fees 9,500 9,500 23,307 13,807
Charges for services
i Fire/ambulance fees 265,000 © 265,000 311,619 46,619
| Inspection fees 136,658 136.658 74,214 (62,444)
| Fire billing 230,000 614,566 697,182 82,616
| Special events 8,000 5,000 6,175 {1,8235).
Other revenue
Miscellaneons - other 0 0 72,877 72,877
Total Revenues 3,474,843 3,859,409 4,074,509 215,100
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Salaries and wages 1,829,299 1,882 636 2,149,529 (266,873)
Employee benefits 1,196,238 1,196,238 1,106,763 80,473
Services and supplics 276,327 603556 667.851 (64,315}
Capital outlay 34,000 38,000 37,089 941
Total Expenditures 3,335.864 3,720,430 3,961,204 (240,774)
Lxcess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 138,979 138.979 113,305 (25.674)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (JSES)
Transfer In 12,000 12,000 12,000 0
Transfer Out (238,083) {238,083) (238,083) 0
Excess {deficiency) ol revenue and other )
financing sources (uses) over expenditures (87,104 (87.104) {112,778) (25.674)
Fund balance - beginning 348,675 348,675 142.439 (206,236)
Fund balance - ending 3 261,571 $ 261,371 % 39661 § (231,910

The notes to fittancial statemnents are
an integral part of this statement,

22




REVENULES
Taxes
Property

EXPENDITURES
Geuneral goveirnment:
Tri Payback

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TRIPAYBACK FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND, EXPENSES « BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Trausfers in

Excess (deficiency} of revenue and other financing

sources {uses) over expenditure
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
$ 0 3 3913 & 3,913
1,133,062 838,459 294,603
1,133,062} (834,546) 298,516
1,133,062 1,133,062 0
0 298,516 298,516
Y 1,811,378 1,811,378
$ 0§ 2,109,894 % 2,109,894

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

23




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2613

ORIGINAL AND VARIANCE WITH
FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
j AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Licenses - permils $ 42,600 % 49984 § 7,384
Intergovernmental
State licenses 2.300 3,605 1,305
Room tax 150,000 129,678 (20,322)
Tourism tax 139,000 155,453 5,453
State grants 0 27,500 27,500
Charges for services
Special gvents (nel) 8,000 33,223 25223
CAP service-change (uet) 7,000 52,518 43518
‘Miscellanegus
Tnterest 1,000 697 (303)
Contvibulions 4,000 4,658 658
Miscellaneous 560,500 13,030 (547.470)
Total Revenues . 925,400 470,346 (455.054)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Salaries and wages 161,663 166,963 (5,300}
Benefiis 74,532 66,581 7,951
Services and supplies 250,568 25461 5,107
Capital outlay . 25000 . $.652 16,348
Total Expenditures 511,763 487,657 24,06
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 413,637 (17,311 (430,948)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)Y
Transfer from VCCTA 0 632,335 632,333
Fund balance - ending 3 413637 & 615024 § 201387

The notes w financial statements are
an integrat part of this statement,

24




ASSETS
Current Assels
Cush
Accounts receivable (net allowance)
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assefs
Capital assets - net of accunnelaied depreciation

Total Assets

LIABI FFTES
Current Liabilities.
Accounts payable
Refundable deposils
Bands payable - cusrént portion
Accrued éxpenses
Accrued interest

Total Current Liabilities

Long Termi Eiabilitics
Bonds payable - net of current portion

S

NET ASSETS
Invested in capilal aséels - nét-of related debt
Unassigned

Fotal Net Assels

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2013

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
§ 1063605 8 181,204  §  1,244.809
48,258 19,823 68,081
7,400 0 2,400
1.14,263 201,007 1,315,290
5,004,322 694,019 5,788,541
$  6oBEI8S 3 895,046 $  7,103.831
$ 19499  § 4752 % 24,251
13,236 0 13,236
52,000 5,558 57,558
7.570 7,334 14,904
12,695 0 12,695
105,000 17,644 122,644
510,555 46,543 557.008
4,531,967 641,918 5,173,885
1,061,263 188,941 1,250,204
¥ 5593230 0§ 830,859 5 6,424,089

The notes to financiat statéinents are
an integral part of this statement.

25




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36,2013

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
‘SYSTEM DIVIDESEWER.  TOTAL
QPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services ¥ 488198 § 214468 % 702,666
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages £1,343, 73,925 155,208
Benefits 34,267 29,842 64,109
Services and supplies 171,965 83,542 255,507
Depreciation 104,235 41,962 146,197
Total Operating Expenise 391,810 229,271 621,081
Operating, Income (Loss) 96,388 {14,803) 81,585
NOMNOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rent and miscellancous 12,000 0 12,000
Interest income 4,214 994 5,208
Interest expense (26,401) {2,789) (29,190)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (10,187 {1,795) (11,982)
Change in net asse(s 86,201 (16,598) 69,603
Net assels - beginning ‘ 5,507,029 695,029 6202058
Net asscts --ending 3 5593230 % 678,431 % 6,271,661

The notes io financial statements are
an integral-part of this statement.

26




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER = TOTALS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
‘Sales of water/sewer fees 5 484041 % 25869 % 698,010
Cash Ouiflows
Salaries and wages {80,136} (72,073) (£52,209)
Salary costs {33,750} {29,843) {63,593)
Services and suppliés (165.010) (83,992) (249.002)
Prepaid Expenses (2,400} 0 (2.400)
; Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 202.845 27,961 230,806
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Rent 12,000 0 12,000
Customer deposis (1,22%) [ (1,229)
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capilal
Financing Activities 10,771 i} 10,771
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Capital contributions 0 152,428 152,428
Cash Qutflows ‘
Capital outlay {13,399) {240.902) (2534,301)
Debt service {26911) (5,287) (32,198)
Interest expense (14,431 (2,789) {17,220)
Met Cash Provided {Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities {54.741) {96.550) (151,291}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Interest earnings 4,308 1,020 5,328
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 163,183 {67.569) 93614
Cash - beginning 900,422 248,773 1.149,195
Cash - ending $ 1,063,605 § 181,204 % 1,244,809

The notes to finaneial statemens are
an integeal part.of this statement.

27




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

AGENCY
FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ] 84,550

LIABILIT(ES
Due o other governments $ 84,550

Net Assels b _._0

“The notes to financial statements are
-an integrat part of this staiement.

28




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, REPORTING ENTITY

Storey County, Nevada, a local government created under thie provisions of Nevada Reviged Statutes 243.110
is governed by an elected three-member board of commissioners. Asrequired by generallyaccepted accounting
_principles, these financial staterments present the government and its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate
enfities, aré in substance, part of the government’s-operations and so data from these units are combined with
ddta of the prinary government:

Blended Component Unilts - The Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District is under the direct oversight of
the Storey County Board of Commissioners. The rates for usérs charges and bond issuance authorizations are
approved by the County Comimissioners, and the legal Hability for the Virginia Divide Sewer District’s debt
remains with Storey County. The District {5 feported asg anénterprise fund.

The. governing body for the towns of* Virginia City.and Gold Hill is the board of County Commissioners of
Storey County. The county persennel provide essentially alk:services for'both Virginia City and Gold Hill.
These towns-are.reported as special rexenue funds.

The Board of County Commissioners directly appoints the governing board of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission (VCTC). The countypersonnel provides essentially all services, accounting, budgeting and other
record keeping for the commission. The VCTC has elected to be reported as a major fund (Special Revenue)
in the County financial statements.

Excludedfrom the reporting entity - Storey County Schools, Storey County Senior Center, and Canyon General
Improvement District.

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services to-residents,
generally within the geographic boundaries of the government.. These potential component units are excluded
from the reporting entity because the government does nothave. the ability to exercise influgnce over their daily
-operations, approve budgets, or provide fanding.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Government-Wide Financial Statements i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of’changes innet
assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component uniis.
For the most part the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, whichnormally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported, separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demon‘s_h_’at‘es‘ the degreesto .whichi.ﬁhe directexpeiises of aigiven fitriction or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those:that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges 't6. custorners or'applicants who purchase, use, or directly.
benefit from goods, sefvices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or

segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues ate reported instead as general
revenues.

C. .MEASUREMENTFOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, Revenues are
recorded when earned and-expenses are recorded when a liabilityis incurred, regardless of the timing of related
f:ash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
Items are recognized as revenue as soon as all éligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

29




Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recogriized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Gross receipts-andisales taxes aré considered “‘medsurable’” when in the hands of intermediary
collecting agents or governments. Revenues are considered availgblewhien they are collectiblewithin the current.
period or soon-enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For'this purpose, the County considers
revenues to be available ifthey are collected within 60 days after the end ofthe currentfiscal period. Anticipated
refinds of taxes are recorded as labilitiesand reductions of revenue when they are measurable and the payment
seems certain Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under acerual accounting,
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenges, and interest.aS‘sp‘ciatcd with the curréat fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to aceral and so have been recognized as revenues. of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue jtems are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be:aceounted for in another fund.

The Fire Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from intergovernmental sources.
Expenditures are for County fire:protection including the purchase of machinery and equipment to provide
such services.

The Tvi Payback Fund accounts for monies which shali befeqiired to be paid back to the developers of the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as detsiled inNote XVII.

The Road Special Révenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from gasoline taxes and other
intergovernmental sources. Expenditures ate for the construction and maintenance of County roads and
bridges, and other road related infrastructure and the purchase of machinery and equipment required to do
such work, (Elected to be reported as major fond.)

The Virginia City Tourism Commission Special Revenue Fund promotes tourism for Storey County and
Virginia City through advertising and promotion of special events and attractions located within the County.
{Elected to be reported as a nmjor fund)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water System Fund aceounts for the-activities of the Virginia City/Gold Hill water distribution system.

The Virginia Divide Sewer System Fund accounts for the operations of the sewage treatment plant, pumping
stations and collectionsysterms,

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the governments water and sewer functions.
Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned,

Amounts reported as Program Revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants.and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as General Revenues rather than as program vevenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. Revenue and expense not meeting this definition are reported
:asnonoperating revenues and expenses.

30




D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.OR EQUITY
1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, short term
investments with original maturities.of three months or less.from the date of acquisition, and the State Treasurer’s
investment pool. Investments are reporfed-at fir valve.

2. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year dre referred to as “due to/from other funds™.

All trade receivables are shown net 6fan allowance for uncollectibles. No allowance is recorded for property
tax receivables, Property taxes are levied ds of July 1 on property values assessed on the same date. The tax
levy may be paid in four installments by the third Monday in August, and the first Monday in Qctober, January
and March, There is a ten day grace period allowed for each installment. Penalties and interest are assessed on
all delinquent collections. Liens are filed on the property at one year’s delinguency.

3. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS

No inventories are maintained by the government for either operating or office supplies. These items are
recorded as expenditures when purchased, rather than when consunied.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items,

4, RESTRICTED ASSETS
The County has no restricted assets as June 30-?_-2013..
5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, cquipment, and infrastructure (i.e.,roads, bridges, sidewalks, storm
drains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities colurnns in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assetsare defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $3000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed, Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimmated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that.do-not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives-are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset construgted, nét of interest earried on the invested proceeds over the same petiod.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated isithe proprietary funds using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Public and System Infrastructure 20-100
Vehicles 5-10
Office Equipment 5-10
Equipment 10-20
Buildings 75-100
Building Improvertients 35-50
Computer Equipment 5
Fumniture and Fixtures 7-10.

31




6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It-is the government’s policy to permit émployees to accumulate earmiéd but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Vested or accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be ligquidated with expendable available
financial resources is reported as an:expenditure and a fund liability of the fund that will pay it. Amounts of
vested or accumulated vacation pay that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable-available financial
resources are reported as long term debt, No expenditure is reported for these amounts. No labilityis recorded
for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits, However a liabilityis recognized for thatportion
of accumulated sick leave-benefits that is required to be paid upon termination. Allemployees with a minimum
acerued sick leave of 360 hours to:a maximum of 960 hours {except for fire department - no maximumy) shall be
paid at retirement or termination of service, other than involuntary termination as follows:

o _ Other Employees Fire Department
Yeats of Continuus Sérvice Rate of Pay Ritg of Pay
& yedis biitless than 10 years  12.5¢ on the Daliar 20.0¢-on the Dollar
10 years’but less than 15 years:  25.0¢ on-the Doltar
10 years:buit less than 20 years 35.0¢ on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years  40.0¢ on'the Dollay
20 years of mmore 50.0¢ on the Doltar 50.0¢ an the Dollar

The maximum sick leave paid-upon termination shall be $5,000 for all employees except law enforcemest and
firemen.

Law Enforcement personnel;

: Less than 10 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% .of their base rate of pay for-gdch howrs, not'to eXceed$1,500

10 to 20 years:of service shall be:paid at a rate.of 40% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed 52,500

Mor¢ than 20 years of service shzll be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed $4,000

Firemen: £,333 lus. maximum for line employees
952 hrs. maximwm for § hr. employees

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and proprietary fund types in‘thé fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as Habilities in the governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of nef assets.

The County currently has no long. teftst bonds payaBle in the governmental funds. The rcvcnu'c_.'l?onds
reported inthe proprietary fund-typesincurred no bond premiums or discounts and therefore have no deferred
charges or amottization. '

The County has a long-term obligation relating to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRI) - see note XVII
for details.

8. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statendernts, governmental funds report designations of fund balances for amounts which
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change: The County has reserved $ 0 of the general
fund balance at Tuly 1, 2013,

H. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. The governmental fund balance sheetincludes.a reconciliationbetween find balance - total governmentalfunds

and net assets - governmental activitiesasréported in the government-wide statement of niet assets, One element
of thatreconciliation explains that “long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable'in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The details of this 36,524,264 differenve are as
follows: Capital assets net of related depreciation are not reported in the Governmental Funds financial
statements.because they are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement of net assets -
$32,050,319. Long term liabilitiesare not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the fands, ($45,526,055).

32




HI.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental find statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities,

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between nef changes in fund balances - total governmental finds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explaing that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. The details of this $(6,090) difference are as follows: Capitaloutlays to purchase capital
assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are shown in the statement of
net assets and.allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.
This is the artiount by which net capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period - $(84(,278). Net
long-term receipts aiid payments reported in governmental fitnds as expénditures $838,459. Some revenues and
expetises in the statemantof activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not
reported as eipeniditures in governmental fonds - $(4,271).

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting pringiples for all
governmental funds.

Thie County follows these procedures in establisi]inig-the"budgeta_ry date reflected in the financial statements:

1. -?-fidr- 10 April'13, the Connty budget officer submmits to the County Commissioners the tentative dperating
budgets (4) for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1, The operating budgets include proposed
-expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. The tentative budgets are filed with the State Department of Taxation by April 135.

3. Apublichearing is conducted at the County Court House to obtain taxpayers comments. (3" Monday in May)

4. The final budgets are adopted and filed with the State Department of Taxation, Final budgets must be
certified by a majority of all members of the governing body. The final budgets must be adopted on or before
June 1.

5. Budgetamounts may be transferred within funds if the governing body is advised and the action is recorded
in the official minutes of the next meeting. Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the County Commissioners. Budget revisions must also be filed with the State Department of

Taxation.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenues, Debt Service, Proprietary, and Capital Projects Funds aré adopted
on & basis consistent with generally accepted accomting principles, (GAAFP)

7. Budgetaungmentations were prepared for the various special revenue funds during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013.

8. All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.
In accordarice with State statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the various

governmental programs of the General Fund or total appropriations of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects
Funds, except as expressly authorized by law.

33




V.

B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
For the year ended June30, 2013, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Appropiiations

Fire Special Revenue Fund $ 3.961,204 $3,720,430
Wildland Fire Protection Special

Revenye Fund ' 590,770 505,992
Shenff Jail Special Revenue Fund 603,785 512,531
Emergency Mitigation Speziai

Revenue Fund 4.609 0
Town of Gold Hill Special

Revenue Fund 2,141 2,000
General Fund - Culture and

Recreation Program 140,308 124172
General Fund - Community

Service Program 485,199 480,296
General Fund - Dbt Service Program 28,962 16,743

L. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The Jail Special Revenue Fund incurred a deficit fand equity at June 30, 2013,
D. COMPLIANCE - NRS 354.624

Storey County has two enterprise: funds: the Water System Enterprise Fund and the Virginia-Divide Sewer.
Improvement District Enterprise Fund. Storey County also maintains-agency funds as follows: State of Nevada
Fund Storey.County School District Fund, Storey County School District Debt Service Fund and the Virginia
City Convention-and Tourism Authority Fund. The County maintains no internal service funds, self insurance
funds or funds whose balance is required by law to be used for a specific purpose other than the payment of
compensation to a bargaining unit, as defined in' NRS 288.028 or carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year
in any designated amount.

All enterprise and agency funds maintained by Storey Courity:

a) are being used in accordarice with NRS 354.624

b} are being administered in‘accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures

c) all reserves in the funds are reasondble and necessary to carry out the purposes of the funds

d) reflect the sources.of revenues available for the fand during the fiscal year - including transfers from other
funds

&) are following the: statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the funds

1) reflect the balance and retained earning of the funds

Storey County has $0 reserved in all funds.

CASH

At year end, the-cartying amount of the bank balances was $19,989,675. Of the bank balances $500,000 was
covered by federal depositaryinsurance. Additionally $6,175,507 cash was on deposit with the Nevada State

Treasurer. The fair value of all cash and invesiments equaled 100% of book value.

Credit risk classification of the County’s cash is as follows:

1. Wnsured by Federal Depaosit Insurance $ 500,000
2. Collateratized with securities held by

The Nevada State Treasurer 6,175,507

3. UncoHateralized with the financial institulion 13,309,679

-4. Uncollateralized - cash on hand 4489

519,989,675

Cash’held by the County is allocated to the vatious funds as follows:

Major governinental funds 511,842,440
Nen-major governmental funds 6,733,326
Business-type funds 1,244 809
19,820,575

Fiduciary funds 169.100
Total $£19.989.675

34




V.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year.end for the governments individual major funds.and non-major funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accouts, are as follows:

Non-Major Proprielary

General Roads Fire VYCTC Funds Funds Total

Receivables: )
Taxes $ 109919 § 28141 5 15,804 i § 153,364
Accounts 226,576 § 83.066 472,581 by 6 143.078 3 68.368 1,000,175
Gross Receivables 336,495 83,066 506,722 6 158,882 68,868 1,154,039
Less: Allowance for

uncollectibles, 0 0 (43.£93) 0 ] (787 (43.980)
Totdl Net Receivables $ 336495 .5 §3.066 $ 463,529 3 6 § 158882 5 68081  $1.110,059

The delinquent taxes receivabile account represents the past threeyears of uncollected tax levies. No allowance
for uncollectibles has been recorded by the County. Taxes received afier 60 days of the year end are recorded
as deferred revenue,

Accounts receivable include intergovernmental receivables. All'accounts receivable, with the exception of the
enterprise fund, were coflected within a 60 day period, therefore no allowance for uncollectibles was recorded
in those funds.

Governmental funds report deferredreveniiein connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the curfent period. At the end of the current fiscal year the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental fiunds were as follows:

Delinquent propérty taxes receivable:

General fund § 145,243
Fire fund : 20,337
VCTC 10,962
Non-major funds 11,42]
Deferred revenue: - District-Cowrt 5652
Total § 193615
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the yedr ended June 30, 2013 was as follotws:
Bepinning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Primary Governiment
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 280,259 $ 107,500 § 387,759
Antique Furniture (] 75,000 75,000
Construction in progress 2229317 0 _2229317
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 2.509.576 182,500 [ 2,692,076

Capital asseis being depreciated
Buildings 8,987,639 9,545,894
Improvements other than buildings 987,208 1,166,313
Machiriery and equijsment 6;441,491 6,390,249
Infrastructure 43.256.707 _ 0 _ 43356707
Toral capital asséts being depreciated 59,673,045 1LI86.118 0 60.859,163

Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Buildings 2,033,399 243,539 2,276,938
Improvements other than buildings 208,150 28,757 236,907
Machinery and equipment 4,971,799 413,033 5,384,832
Infrastructure 2,078,676 1,523,567 3,602,243
Total acewmulated depreciation -8.292 024 2,208 896 0 11,500,920
Govemmental activities capiial assets - nat 5352 890,597 3 {840.278) 5 0  $52050319
‘Business type activities:

Capital assets being depreciated
Water and sewer system 57448430 5§ 240,904 3 7,689334
Machineryand equipment 580,578 10.145 590,723
Total Capital assets being depreciated 8029008 251,048 5 1] 8,280,057

35




VI

VI

IX.

Less-accumulated depreciation for

Water and sewer systems 1,933,910 116,469 2,050,379
Machinery and egquipment 411.409 29,728 441.137

Tetalaccumulated depreciation 2345319 146,197 ] 2491.516
Bisingss type dctivities capital assets - nét 35683689 $ 104,852 $ ] $5.788.541

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary govemnment as follows;

Governmenlal activities:

General government $ 325041
Public safety 213,168
Highways and streets, including depreciation
of general infrastruclure asseis 1,650,017
Culture and recreation 20670
Total depreciation expense.-
Governmeiiti] activities $2.208.896
Business type activities:
Water 5 104235
Sewer 41.962
Total depreciation.expense -
business type activities § 146,197

INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES
There were no interfund balances as of June 30, 2013.

Interfund transfers;

Transfer From Transfer to Amount
Geriéral Fund- Rioad Fund § 200,000
General Fund Tri Payback 812,702
Indigent Accident General Fund 291
Wildiand Fire Protection Generat Fund 25,000
Equipment Acquisition Road Fund 83,293
Fire Fund Equipment Acquisition 30,000
Fire'Fund Tri Payback 208,083
Wildland Fire Protection. Fire Fund 12,000
Wildland Fire Protection Tri Payback 52,667
Equipment Acquisition Tri Payback 23,940
Jail Fund Tri Payback 35.670

§1.483.646

CAPITAL LEASES

On January 11,2002, Storey County entered into a lease agreeiment as lessee for financing the acquisition of (4)
Pierce Hawk Wildlands fire apparatus. This leass qualifies.as.a capital léase for accouriting purposes (fitle
transfers at therend of the lease term), and therefore was recorded at the présent value of the: futire minimum
lease payments as of the date ofinception. ThisTease was completed during fiscal year énded June 30, 2013:

MEDIUM TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT

Special Assessment Bonds - The County has no special assessment bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013.

Contracts Payable - The County has no contracts payable at June 30, 2013,

Medium Term Loan - On December 21, 2008, Storey County entered into a.medium term bond with Bank of

America for $520,000 beariﬁg-_intere'st_at arateof4.85% perannim. Repayment terms are interest only payable
on June 21, with principal and interest payable on Degerniber 21 annwally. The. following schedule represents
the debt service requirements: '

Principal Jnterest, _Total
December 21,2013 § 74,285 $ 3,603 5 77,888
June 21,2014 £.801 1,80t
December 21,2014 74,285 1.801 76,086
$148.570 $ 7.205 § 155725

36




Revenue Bonds - The County issued bonds, where the County pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt service. Revenues bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

$714,000 water revenue bonds with semi-annual installments of interest and annual payments of principal
totaling $38,801 per-year through January 1, 2037, used for imiprovements to the Virginia City water system.

BALANCE B BALANCE
6/30/12 RETIRED 6/30/13
$ 560466 $ 12910 S_547.355

$294,000 water revenue bonds due in annual installments of $10,000 to $15,000 through January 1, 2014, used
for improvements o the Virginia City Water System.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/12 RETIRED 6/30/13
$ 29.000 S 14000 $ 15000

$138,000 sewer revenue bonds due at $673 per month including principal and interest through June 1, 2021 and
a final payment of approximately $260 used for improvements to the Virginia-Divide Sewer System.

BALANCE BALANCE
6130712 RETIRED 6730713
3 57389 § 35287 §_ 52102

$890,000 Virginia City Rail Bond - Series 2610A due in annual installments of $36,000 to $73,000 through
December 1, 2027,

BALANCE _ BALANCE
06/30/12 RETIRED 6/30/13
$ 854,000 $ 38000 $ 816000

$859,000 Virginia City Rail Bond - Series 2010B due. in annual installments of $33,000 to.$73,000 through
December 1, 2027.

BALANCE BALANCE
06/30/12, RETIRED 6/30/13
3 826,000 $ 34000 $ 792,000

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity including interest are as thllows:

YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, ANNUAL TOTAL
2014 102015 $223,197 1o 225272 $ 448,469
2016 102021 212,876 to 221,887 1,205,911
2022 t0 2028 189,546 to 203,201 1,376,342
2029 162037 38,801 349,200

Changes In Long-Term Liabilities- During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the following changes occurred
in liabilities reported inthe general long term debt group:

BALANCE _ BALANCE
JULY [, 2082 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2013
Compensated ahsences 5 124453 b3 29,1358 5 3,425 $ 150,186
Capital leases 105,241 105,241 [}
Tri-Construction
repayment 44,450,564 0 838.459. 43.612.105

$ 44,680 258 $ 29,158 § 947.125 $43.762.291

SEGMENT INFORMATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The County issued revenue bonds to finance its water department and sewage treatment facilities. Summary
information for these funds is presented below:

37




XL

Virginia Divide

Water Fund Sewer Fund
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ASSETS _
Cuirent assets $1,114,263 $ 201,027
Capital assets (et accumulated depreciation) 5,094.522 __ 694019
Total Asscls 6208785 895,046
LIABILITIES _
Curreiit liabilities 105,000 17,644
Non-curtent liabilities 515,555 46,343
Totak Liabilities 615,555 64,187
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt. 4,531,967 641,918
Unrestricted 1,061,263 188,941
Total Net Assets $5.593230 S 830859
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES-AND EXPENSES
Operating revenug §. 488,198 $ 214,468
Depreciation (104;235) (41,962)
Other operaling expenses (287.575_) (187 3_(}9)‘
Operating income {loss) 96,388 (14,803}
Nonaperating revenues (éxpenses) o
Rent income 12,000 0_.
Interest income 4214 _9.9_4 _
Inderest expense (26.401) {2789}
Change in net assets $ 86201 5 {I6,598)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by
Operating-activities $ 202,345 3 27961
Noncapital financing activities 10,77 0
Capital and refated financing activities {54,741) (96.550)
Investing activities 4308 1,020
Net increase (decreasc) in cash 163,183 (67.569)
Cash - beginning 900.422 _A06.874
Cash -enditig $ 1.063.605 5 181904

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County participatesin both Federal and State Grant Programs. The audits of these programs for or including
the year ended June 30, 2013 have not been finalized. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable
grant requirements will be establisted at some: future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cammot be determined at this time, although the County expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is currently a defendant in no Jawsuits, with no other unasserted possible claims which are probable
of assertion

AVAILABLE BORROWING CAPACITY

The Nevada Revised Statutes section 244.805, limits the County’s general obligation debt to 10% of the
County’s assessed valuation, The 2012/2013 assessedvaluationis $51 6_,800,‘0'00 which would allowthe bonding
up to $51,680,000. On June 30, 2013, the County had $148,570 outstanding general obligation bonded debt,
exclusive ofrevenue and school district bonds.

The town of Virginia City general obligation debt. limit based on the 2012/2013 assessed valuation was

$32,700,000 (NRS 269.425). The town of Virginia City has at June 30, 2013 no general obligation bonds
outstanding.

The town of Gold Hill general obligation debt limit based on the 2012/201 3 assessed valuation was $10,200,000
(NRS 269.425). The town of Gold Hill has at June 30, 2013, no general obligation bonds outstanding.

38




KL

XIV.

XVL

PROPERTY TAXES _
Property taxes attach as an enforéeable lien as of July 1. The tax is levied for the fiscal year beginning July
1*after the Nevada Tax Commission has certified the combined tax rate for the county on May 25%.

Taxeson the property are due oft the third Monday in July. Taxes may be paid in quarterly instaliments, die-on
the third Monday of July and the first Monday in October, January and March. Penalties are added if the
installments are not made within ten (10) days of the due date,

PENSION PROGRAM - NEVADA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The County participatesin the statewide governmentretirement system; a multiple-employer, cost sharing public
employees pension plan which covers substantially all of the County’s full time employees. The County has no
liability for unfunded obligations of the Nevada State Public Employees Retirement System.

PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, arinual cost of living adjustnients, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Nevada Revised Statutesestablish and amend benefit provisions to be administered
by the Retirement Board. The Public Employees Retirement Board of the State of Nevada issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements.and required supplementary information for PERS;
That report may be obtained from PERS, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703

The Countypays all contributions forallemployees covered under the plan. PERS basic funding policy provides
for periodiceontributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary throughout an employees working
lifetiine, inorder to accumulate sufficient assets'to pay benefits when due. Although PERS receives anactuarial
valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates as required o fund PERS on an actuarial reserve
basis, botli for funding purposes and GASB disclosure purposes, contributions actually made are in accordance
with the required rates established by the Nevada State Legislature.

The payroll for employees eovered by the system for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $5.930,306. The
County’s total payroll was $7,428,838. Storey County’s contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30,
2013 was §1,871,896, All costs.tothe County were paid or acerued at June 30, 2013 The County’s coniribution
represented less than 1% of'total contributions:to the retirement system.

Currently 119 employees are covered under the retirement plan out of a total of 132 employees. Eligibility
requirements are 40 hours per bi-weekly payroll period, no minimum wage is required for participation, nor is
there any length of service requirement for participation. Contributions are made at a rate 0f 20.5% (33'4% for
police and firemen) of annual compensation.

SOLID WASTE LANDFILL - LOCKW(0O0D

In 1992 Refuse, Inc. réceived an-amended special use permit from Storey County for the operation of a solid
waste landfill, conditioned on meeting.all of the requirements of federal landfill regulations (Subtitle D, 40CFR
Parts 257 arid 258). Under the terms of the agreement Refiise, Inc, is responsible for all closure and post closure
costs. Estimated costs for closure are $2,764,375 and the cost for post closure maintenance is $9,503,634 for
a total 0f $12,268,009. There are currently no corrective action cost nor other envirenmental obligations.
Refiise, Inc. is incomplete compliance with the Financial Assurance Requirements of 40 CFR, part 258, Subpatt
G, as well as Nevada Administrative Code 444.685 - 444.6859. The closure and post closure costs dre insured
through Liberty Mutual Insurance Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Storey County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employee and natural disasters. Storey County has joined together
with other counties in the State to-form Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool, a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 41 governmental entities. The
county pays an amival premivm to PENCO for its general insuranice coverage. The Agreement for,
Formation of the NPAIP program provides that NPAIP will be selfsustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in éxcess of $100,000 for Property and Crime
and §150,000 Casualty for each insured event,

The County:-continues to carry commercial insurance for'all other risks or loss, including workers’
compens_aﬁo'n and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claing resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

39




XVIL

XVIIL

XIX.

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER (TRI)

On February 2, 2000, Storey County Nevada, entered into a development agreement with Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Ceater LLC along with DP Operating Partnership, LP for the purposes of completing structures,
including grading, infrastructure, and all public facilities related to the property owned by TRI which
consists of approximately 102,000 acres, of which approximately 9,000 acres is zoned for industrial usage
within Storey County. The development agreement represents the commitment between Storey County and
TRI to fund the capital infragtrycture costs and local community services required by the project.

According to the agreements, TRI is responsible for the construction of the project public infrastructure,
which shall be dedicated to and maintained by Storey County. Such-infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks
and streetlights, fiood control, drainage ¢hannels, storm drains, basins and other related ficilities; and County
building-complexes including fire stations, police: stations, public works maintenance yards and
admiinistrative offices, The County is:not responsible for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the
project private ififrastructure such.as commumty water and sewer facilities, railroad trackand related
facilities, landscaping of common ateas, o private trails and parks and other property not dedicated to the
County. The County is responsible for separately recording certainreveriue and expenses directly
attributable to the TRI project, approving reimbursable costs, and determining the net annual revenue
reimbursement to TRI.

The agresments establish a revenue threshold that represents the annual fiscal year in which the TRI net
revenue exceeds $5,000,000. The revenue threshold must be met before any reimbursements are made to
TRI for project related infrastructure costs. Once the revenue threshold is:met, the County is responsible for
reimbursing TRI for approved project vouchers up {o 35% of annual net revenue, Such reimbursements are
also limited to 5% of the project assessed valuation at the end of each year. The revenue threshold has been
met.

The term of this agreement shall commence upon the effective date and shall expire Fifty (50) years after the
effective date, unless extended by writteri amendment executed by the County and Developer. A special
revenue fund was established as of Tuly 1, 2009, to provide payment to our TRI partners. A payment of
$838,459 was made by the TRI Payback Fund during the fiscal year.

Future allocations into-the TRI Payback Fund will be a percentage of revenues directly attributed to TR to
include property taxes, business licence, permits, inspection fees, and real property transfer taxes.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITICN FUND

The County Comptroller has determined that funds have been expended out of the Equipment Acquisition
Fund for the purpose of equipment maintenance, vehicle maintenatice, supiplies and reital equipment for.the
Fire Special Revenue Fund. The approximate total ofthese' experiditures was $650,000. Aninterfund loan
will be established for the repayment of these funds, Payment will be made through eachyear’s higher than
anticipated revenues or 10% of all revenues collected, whichever is greater, uniil the balance is paid. A
payment of $30,000 was made in fiscal year 2013.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A-$24,000 prior period adjustment was made fora check reissued to Sierra Pacific Power Co, Relating to
2010. The reissued check cleared the bank in fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

40




1%

JUAWHES SIYyy Jo. Led peidorur ug
QIR SIUSWISIRIS [RIOWEUL) O] SO30U DIf )

(A $ LEE'65S $ £e5's $ TI6'LE $ 0 g 9TTEEL 3 9FS80L % @oUBjeg pun. puB SaNI[IqeRI] [B10],

LTS orF oSS €758 LPS'SE 168°9¢€1 1957298 Puejeq pung jRoy

zUe'9 Ope'LIE €258 Tt 168°9¢1 ZeeiLy poudisseup)-
005°zTL 60001 60T°16 suonerado seod aamng Wy pareuSsog

AONVIVH ONNA

0 LIFS 0 057 0 sgeT SO09TI SONMYIGRLT [PI0L,
€9 §€E7T $ 1918 . S9XE] paus)a]
0 £ £$6°8 $ 0 § £9¢'T $ 0 £ POsOFL . § ajqeied siunaay
SALLTHEvYTT
TLLY ¥ LEP6SE '$ i ATV $ 0 Y 9TT 6Ll £ SFSR0L 3 5)assy [B)O ],
7 s SN0
659 ££TC LLI'L Auadoad - soxn |,
SajgeAToony
U9 £ BIT65¢ $ £25'8 $ ZI6'LE 3 166°5€1 £ ¥THT0L $ yse))
— . . : ‘ SIASSV
XV TYOIadn 1HNOO DA GNMNA L3N0 dINV LGISSY NOILISINOOY NOILILOMA
Y LNEDIANT HILLS0r LNIDIN LNFNAINQH JUld ANVIATMA

ANNIATL IVIDAdAS

£10Z "0€ ANNT
SANNA TV ANINNIYEAOD YOV INNON
LIIHS FONVIVE DNINIEINOD
YAVATN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS

€30 | 2y




v

“JuawoIes sup jo 1ed peadoqus ue
Qe SUSWISIEIS [BIDURM] O} SIFOL.HY [,

8¢8°11 $ ¥6Z 01 k) (849 $ Po1°s1 $ 16£°56 $ (685°LY) %
09911 2E0°01 L5570 FOT'ST 16£°¢6 (112'96)
099°11 gL0° LT 165'79 F91°51 I16£°6L (11296)
051'ty 0000
341 9LT'1 80167 0 0 T8y
8r'E
8L1 EY 9LT1 $ 20162 $ 0 g 0 $ opTick $
8681 [ Y67 T01 £ 6P8PSI. 3 ¥o1°61 $ 16£°58 g (635723} g
L1 ¥
S18°%F
8LBI T 3 6T 701 $ RS § FOL'S1 £ 16£°56 $ (80¥'78) $
THH 10D AL VINIDYIA ADOTIONHOAL INAQIDOY NOILYDILIN oNIQTINgG
JO NMOL 40 NAOL LNADION! ADNIDIINT ik
ANNAAZAY TVIDAdS

gJogaBed

£107 ‘0% FANNT
SANN TV LNINNIIAOD YOIYINNON
LTAHS BINVIVE ONINIEWOD
VAVAIN "ALNNOD ATHOLS

(154ap) 20UE(EY pUR] puE SanIIqRI R0
3DuRlRg pung [BI0],
paudisseupy

suoneiado savaA 23mnyg 10} pajpufisag
HONVIVE NN

sonuIgel T 1ejoy,

SOXE) PREI)R(]
a[qehed stunoady
SHLLTTIHVTL

(a)30p) 51255 JR10 L,

SHINoosY
Auadosd - saxmy,
SHARAIODY
ses
5155V




i34

‘Juawiers siyr Jo wed eadajur ue
22 SIUDIUDIE]S [RIOURL} 0} SAIOU U,

WT'T689 8 0LS9LE'T  § 9649261 § £08°05¢ $ §TE9T $ 000°000°T 8 LESHOT 3 #6051 g Q0UEB[RE] PUN] PUB SANIIQRIT [€30L

PTILES™D DLSOLE 96L'9T6°1 C08'05¢ AR 000°000°1 LEEFOT 91¢°s6 aoUR[RE PUNS [BIO]

PPSILD'S 6v89T§ 96L°9T6°1 CO8'srE 4304 0007008 LEEVOT 9156 paudissen)

08< 19v°L FCL6Y8 000°s 000°00T. suoneiodo s1ead I 10) pareudisag

HONY IV ONIHL

PRO6SE 0 0 ] 0 ] 0 8LL 61N SPUNIqe!t [

1ZF'11 $XE} paudja(]

£95°L¥E $ 0 3 1] 3 0 $ 0 § ¢ $ 0 ¥ §LL°6IT § sjqeied s1modoy

SHILFIAVIT

g0'T68'Y ¢ 0LsoLe’t § 96L°9Z6'l § £08'05% 5 €Tt $ 000'000°T % LEEVOT Y vmo“m T $ $1955Y Te10]

gLOEP] 6LF'TE FLSO1T SN0y

$08°C1 Kuadod - saxef.
SATQRALIODY

9T EEL's  § DLS9LEL % LIEF68L 8 £08°08E 3 STE9T $ 000°000°T % LEETOT $ £TEH01 S yser),

IVILOQOE LOHF O.ME Tvd CINNA SLOFfOYUd AN ONILLSHL AN ADNBOANG SINVHD HLVLS
ALD VINIDWIA FUNEINYISVHANI TVLIAYD HAHAVYIN NOILYZITIEVLS qJdd ANV Tvd3a3d
SDLLEANED
SLOFAIO¥Ud TYLIdVD ANNIATY IVIDAdS
CI0T ‘0T ANAF
SAaNNd TYINTANAIAOD HOIVIAINON
LAZHS JONYIVE ONINIEWNOD

VAVAIN "AINNOD ATRIOLS

¢ Jo g oded




¥y
“Jesmsyers sy jo ed jpifou we
2IE SHUISWHIE]S [RILURUL O SAI0U DI ],

£ 30y 98eg

ANNIATY TVIDALS

€102 '9E ANNS ATANT ¥VIA HL YO
SANLL TV LNTINNYTIAOD OTVIANON
SAONVTVH ANNA NI SHONYHD

L9 $ OF¥'0ss $ €758 $ LES'SE $ 0 $ 168°9¢1 Y #5779 $
95t'e £6Z'T68 ForL 1S1°eE 167 0088 Lig9cs
(781} (£58° 1Y) 650°1 96£°C {162) 681°8F ¥2zT'9
(15¥°601) .
{162} (eezeL) (£99°68)
r81) (£58°1) 6501 965°Z ¢ CL8PET [68°S6
“er 9v'68 0 090° 0 6 0LL0GS
L9¥°68
rEY
090t
0LL06S
057 FLOLY 650°1 95¥'s 0 CLAPET 199°989
0 $ LGt OI0'ELI
650°1 $ 95y'c $
05z $
P19ttt ¢ 9LEPET $ 189'¢rs kY
XV TY2I1Aan LEN0D HHa aN{ALEN0D ADNVLSISSY NOLLISINOOY NOLLDALOY
MUvd LNADIANI FDLSNL JINTDIGNT ANTWNIINOI T ANVIATM

ANY STANLIANTIXT ‘SINNIATY 40 INIAWI LY LS DNINITWNOD:

VOVAINALNNIOD AZAOLS

(101]2p) Bwpua - aoue[eq- punyg
(31010p) Bmundaq - aouegeq pui;g

saumipuadxs A0 {Sasry} soomeg
Susnen ] 1513¢) pue onuaady Jo (ousidyop) ssoong

spadaoad puog
BIAKS 19T
SIDJSURI ],
SHUSHY SN0 ONIDNYNIT JIHILO

SUMEPUHIXD 10AG SINUPADI JO {ADUNIOEIP) S50
sormpuadxg jeio],

[BIUDWHLIDAVT 123U |

IBYPM

UONEIONL PUR DUAIL)

[EToIpny

Anpesanjang

UBULIACE [RIoUDD)

Juouny

SHNNLITANTIXA

SINUIASY 10,

SONUIADI 10
SOIMIBFA0] PUE kL)
$501ASOS JOJ SadIel)

jerasAnB |
saxe ],

AANIATY




134

“JUaWSNeIS snp o 1ed jridatur ue
DI S)UILUDIRIS [RIDUBLL O) SYOU DY

09911 ;3 2EO101 3 1kL'sed $ P91°¢1 g 16€°66 g (1196} £ Swipuz - souelRq pUny
1081 86570£1 0TL 191 FAYAY 000°001 LS 6T1 Sunsu§aq - doupteq pung
(v (08s°60) (6L6'5€) 716% (609°t) (899°512) saInppuedxz] I940 (S08[)} $92I00S
Suioweut,] IO pUe 0U3A0Y JO (AOUAIOLP) SSI0NT
spoasord puog
2014125 193]
(DLgsey SERJSURI],
(S9SN SADUNOS DNIONYNIT JaHL0
(tp1'e) (085760 (6L6'5€) T16'6 (609°'F) (866'6L1) SMUPUAIND J0AD SINUBADI JO {ADUBIOLOD) 5500XT
IPIT 088'67 SiL'Lot 0LE'09 609t S8L°E09 sonpuadyy [elo]
JENUIDMILLIDAD G RO
0LE09 2JBJloMm
UOIERIN] PUR INY[17).
|erotpny
609y S8L509 A10)es o1jang
iz 085'6T SIL*L0! WauRLaA0E Eiousn
Uy
UM LIANT I
o $ 0 $ 9EL YL 8T0L 0 LeL'eTy SoNEATY {EI0],
obL 0 § PP ‘ SANUDADT S0
L3R°0L DHINHFIOY PUE SuL]
966°0L $ SBOIAIDS JO). SoS 1Ry
. fepnLEdAcFIg
800 $ 72t g SaNE]
ANNIATY
THUH AT0D ALID VINIDYIA ADOIONHOTL INTAOV NOILVOLLIN ONIQTINg
40 NMOL 40 NMOL LNZDIAN] ADNIDHING v

£jo g odeq

AANAAITY TVIDALS

€102 0L INNS AZANT ¥VIA FHL W0
SN TYINTANEIADD HOTVINNON
STIONYIVE AN NI SHADNYHD

ANY STUNLIANTXT SANNIATY 40 LNGWALVLS DNINIEINOD

VAOVATIN AILNNCD ATA0LS




or

“Juatuales s jo ued eidoul ug
212 SJUDIUMEIS [BEDUBLY OF $2)0U DY

IKIL'Y  § 8RLLPEL  § 96L'9T61 § £08° 08¢ 5 $TE'GT $ 000000l § LEEPOT 3 91EsE $
LUF9LL9 3E0°LTE | 068°SEL ] <08'DEE TTTRL 0000001 LEEP0T 089'F8
986 SH {DET6L1) 905061 0 £01S 0 0 9£9°01
0
(10£4°88¢7) (0sT'6L1}
(198°20%)
215°LES 0 906'06 | 0 £0L1'8 ¢ 0 9EYDL
Z9E°970°C 0 0 0 [ 0 0 IEF FES
LEF6¥Y
trLsl BOEIS]
090
LTE6SSTL 0 £91°09¢
S1¥I91 0 6L6'CT
006°E95°C. 0 S06°061 0 £01°8 0 0 cLLeTs
189941 ] § 0 $ 0 § 0 g
505°58 00 g
OpT° 1L
$L1'ST3 CLIETS $
SeT'LOF1  § 906'061 $
TYIOL LOHI0¥d TIvd annd SEDAOUS ANDd ONELSTL AN ADNIDEIWA  SINVYDALYIS
ALID VINIDYIA  THALINYLSVEANI TYLAVD WANAVIN NOILVZIIAV.LS EHIE| ANV TVIAATE
JNLANED
SIOFAMOUd TVLIAYD SANNIATY TVIDTAS

£30 ¢ o358y

£10Z “0F INN QIANT YVHA HHL 304
SANNA TYINIANYEIADD YOrvINNON
SHONYIV AN NI SHONVHD

CNY STUNLIANAIXE “SANNTATYE 10 INTWALY LS DNINIGNOD

YAVAIN "ALNNOD ATICLS

()myap) Buipus - doueEg puny
(1o139p) 3uwdaq --aduepeq puny

sare puadxs 1aa0 ($a5()) s02In0g
SUIDURL ] IDIC) PUE DNUSATY JO (KIUDIDIFOP) SSAANET

spaaaold puog
0taes 1gaQ
SIojsuBL];
{8280 SEOHN0S DNIDNVNIE ¥010

52101 puadyy 1340 SINMUDADLJO (AOUILaP) 50X

sainjipuadxsg [s1o)

JEuRwIRAOR 191ty

SICY24,

UDITBDIIDE PUE QINTNTY

jerpng

A19ES [N}

PWNA0F [Rratasy

U

SERANLIANTJIXT

SINUPATY JB10].

SINUIADS JOYIC)
S2ANNBLI0) pue aulg
SADEALDE 107 S5TIBL Dy
jesuIaA0BINUy
SAXE],

ANNIATE




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND. FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes kY 525,149 % 515651  § {9,498)
Other Revenues
: Miscellaneous ki) 171,010 171,010
Total Revenucs 525,149 686,661 161,512
EXPENDITURES
‘Public safety
Salaries and wages 0. 46,166 (46,166)
Benefits 0 7,411 (74198
Service.and-supplies 305,992 415,418 90,574
Capital.outlay 4] 121,775 (121,775
Total expenditures 503,992 590,770 (84,778)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 19,137 95,891 76,734
LOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES
“Transfer out (89,667) (89,667) 0
‘Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing .
sources {uses) over expenditures. (70,510 6,224 76,754
Fund balance - beginning _ 487,865 556317 68,452
Fund balapce - ending 3 417,355 % 562,547 % 145,186

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this stalement.

47




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOQUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property taxes b 238,705 % 234,376  § (4;329)
Otlier revenues
Interest 500 497 3}.
Total Revenues 239,205 234,873 (4,332}
EXPENDITURES
Puhlic Safety
Capital outlay 0 0 0
Debt serviee
Principal 105,241 105,241 0
Interest 4210 4,210 0
Tolal Expenditures 109,451 109,457 0
Excess (d'eﬁéfency) of revenues over expenditures 129,754 125,422 4,332)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transferin 30,000 30,000 0
Transfer gut {107.233) (107,233) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other ﬁ'nancing
sources (uses) over expendilures 52,521 48,189 {4,332)
‘Fund balance - beginning 167,490 88,702 (78.788)
"Fund balance --.e'nilirgg_ £ 220,611 % 136,891 % (83,120)

The notes (o financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

48




STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
INDIGENT ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE ‘YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

"VARIANCE WITH

ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES

Transfer out 3 291 % 291 % 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures {251) (291) i}
Fund balance - beginning 291 291 0
Fund balance - ending $ 0 3 0. $ [t}

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

49




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
JUSTICE COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS {NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Fines
Justice court fines $ 30000 & 5456 § 456
EXPENDITURES
Tudicial
Services and supplies 15,000 3,060 11,940
Excess{deficiency) of revenues over expenditures { ]O,DU{JQ 2,396 1:2,_396
Fund Balance~ beginning 18,960 33,151 1,191
Fund Balance - ending $ 2960 & 35,547 % 26,587

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part-of this statement.

30




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DRUG COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE-WITH

ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Fines and forfeils o
Drag court fees 3 500 $ 1,059 % 159
Excess of tevenue ovér expenditures 900 1,059 159
Fund balance - beginning 7.904 7,464 (440)
Fund balance - ending ¥ 8804 $ §523 3§ (281)

The niotes to financial statements aie
an integral part of this statement.

51




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
_ INDIGENT MEDICAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCES,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes .
Properly taxes b 47,741 % 47614 & (127
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 369,778 89,467 280311
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenditures (322,037) (41:833) 280,184
Fund balance - beginning 322,037 392,293 270,256
Fund balance - ending $ 0o s 550,440 $ 550,440

The notes to financial stalements are
an integral part of this statement.

52




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PARK TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Charges for services $ 1,500 % 250 % (1,250)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 1,500 434 [.066
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 0 (184} {184)
Fund bafance - beginning 6,205 6,456 251
Fund balance - ending 3 6,205 § 6,272 § 67

The notes to financial statements are
an intcgr_a_l_:pan_ of this statement,

33




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SHERIFF JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE: YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTES (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property taxes $ 355,668 % 348,466 % {7,202)
Fines )
Courl fines 70,000 70,887 887
Other rovenues
Interest 600 301 (299)
Miscellancous 2,000 4,133 2,133
Total Revenues 428,268 423,787 (4,481}
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages 254,968 323,176 (68,208)
Employee benefits 171,563 214,895 (43,332)
Services and supplies 76,000 62,020 13,980
Capital outlay 10,000 3,694 6,306
Total Expenditures 512,831 603,785 (91,254)
Excess (defTciency} of revenues over expenditures (84,263) (179,998) (95,735)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out {35,670} (35.670) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and othier _
financing sourges (uses) over expenditures (1 ]9,93'3_] 1215,668) (95,735)
Fund batanee - beginning 172,346 119457 {52,889)
Fund balance - ending $ 52413 % (96:211y § (148,624)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral parl of this statement.

34




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EMERGENCY MITIGATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
" BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS {NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES

Services and supplies $ 0 § 4609 § {4.609)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditires 0 (4,609 {4,60%9)
Fund balance - beginaing 100,000 100,000 0
Fund balange - ending $ 106,600 8 95,391 % {4,609)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of'this statement.

33




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ACCIDENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED fUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 71610 § 70,282 % (1,328)
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 71,610 60,370 11,240
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures 0 9,912 9,912
Fund bajance - beginning 0 5,232 5,252
Fund-balance - ending

3 6 5 15,164 § 15,164

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part-of this statement.

36




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

_ VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Charges Tor services _
chhno]ogy fees g 56,050 % 0996 3% 20,946
Other revenues
Inlerest incame. 300 740 440
Total revenues 50,330 71,736 21,386
EXPENDITURLES
General governiment
Services and supplies 115,000 107,715 7285
Exvess (deficiency) of revénues aver expenditures {64:650) (35,979 28671
Fund balance. - beginning 114,856 161,728 46:864
Fund balarice - ending 3 50206 % 125,741 & 75,535

The notes to financial statemerits are
ail integral part of this statement,

57




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TOWN OF VIRGINIA CITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2013

VARIANCE WITH

ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS: AMOUNTS {(NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES

General government
Services and supplies b 32,000 % 29580 % 2420
Excess (deficicncy) of revénues over expenditures (32,000) (29,580) 2,420
Fund balance - beginning 125,847 130,598 4,751
Fund balance - ending 3 93,847 % 101,018 % 7,171

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

3B




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TOWN OF GOLD HILL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE "YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AN FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED. ~ ACTUAL POSITIVE:
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES

General government:
Services and supplies 3 2000 § 2,141 § (141y
Excess (deficiency).of revenues over expenditures (2,000) (2,141 (141}
Fund balance - beginning 14,294 13,801 (493)
Furid balance - ending 3 12,294 § 1,660 & (634)

The notes o financial statements are
an integral part of this siatement.

59




3
|
1
]

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

| VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federat grants $ 152,000 § 373,725 % 221,725
USACE Wastewater 513,375 168,876 (344,503}
State granis 442,503 261,994 (180,509
VCTC 60,000 18,584 (41,416}
Total Revenues 1,167,878 823,173 (344,705)
EXPENDITURES
General government - VCTC
Services and supplies 60,000 22979 37.021
Cuiture and recreation
Services and supplies 152,000 151,309 691
Public safety
Services and supplies 0 207,734 (207.734)
CDBG Wastewaler 313,375 152,429 360,946
Intergovernmental - State
Services and supplies 442 5303 278,086 164,417
Tatal Expenditures 1,167,878 812,537 355341
Excess (deficiency) of revennes over expenditures ] 10,636 10,636
Fund balance - beginning 27249 84,680 57.431
Fund balance - ending 3 27249 % 95316 % 62,067

Thenotes to Tinancial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

60




) STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FiRE EMERGENCY ‘SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE}
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety

Services and supplies 3 83462 3% ¢ 3 83,462
Capital outlay 75,000 0 75,000
Totat Expenditures 158,462 0 158,462
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (158,462) 0 [58,462
Fund balance - beginning 166,875 204.337 37462
Fund balance - ending 3 8413 3 204337 8 195924

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part 'of this statement.

61




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30, 2013

o YARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND: FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General govermment ) 200,000 § 0 % 200,000
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenditures {200,000) 0 200,000
Fund balance - beginning 800,000 1,000,000 200,000
Furdl balance - ending $ 600,000 §  1,000000 $ 400,000

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

62




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENETIC MARKER TESTING FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

ORIGINAL AND VARIANCE WITH
FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENLUE
Fines and lorleitures $ 8,500 % 8105 % (397}
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplies 6,000 0 6,000
Excess (deficiency) of revénues over expenditures 2,500 8,103 5.603
Fund balance - beginning 18,179 18,222 43
Fund balance - ending by 20,679 3 26325 § 5,646

Fhe notes io. financial statements are
an.integral part af Lhis statement,

63




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CAPITAL PROJIECTS FUND
SCHEDULE QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET ANI ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

ORIGINAL AND VARIANCE WITH:
FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS {NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General governiment
Capilal cutlay ) 230,000 8§ 0 kS 230,000
Debt service 70,000 ] 70,000
Total expenditures 300,000 1} 300,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (300,000) 0 300,000
Fund balance - begsinning (deficit) 315,045 350,803 35,758
Fund balance - ending $ 15045 % 350,803 § 335,738

The notes to financial statemenis are
an integral part of this statement,.

b4




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITIL
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMQUNTS {NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovermnenial
4% Optional sales tax 3 178400 % 190,906 3% 12,506
‘EXPENDITURES
General government ]
Services and supplies 676,185 0 676,185
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (497.785) 190,906 688,691
'OTHER FINANCING SOURGES (USES)
Wirginia City Rail Project - fransfer (149,190} 0 149,190.
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other {financing
sources (uses) over expenditures (646,975) 190,906 837.881
Fund balance - beginning 687,652 1,735,890 1,048,238
Fund balance - ending ¥ 40,677 $ 1,926,796 § 1,886,119

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

63




STOREY.COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY RAIL PROJECT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND: FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED. ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay ) 215000 % 0 5 215,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditires (213,000} 0 215,000
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond Proceeds 30,060 28,782 (1,278)
Debit Service
Principal (72,600} (72,000) {
Interest {107,250) (107,250) 0
“Transfers 149,190 0 (149,190}
Exeess (deficiency) of revenues and other fnancing
sources (nsés) over expendilures (213,000) (150,468) 64,532
Fund balance - beginning 227,013 1,527,038 1,300,025
Fuind balance - ending g 12,013 % 1,376370  § 1,364,557

The'notes to financial statemients.are
an-iniegral part of this stateinent.

6.




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED.JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of water $ 437000 % 488,198 % 51,198
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 80,588 81,34_3 (755)
Benefits 38,105 34.267 3,838
Services and supplies 206,473 171,965 34,508
Depreciation 127,885 104,235 23,650
Total Operating Expenses 453,051 391,810 61,241
Operating Income (Loss) (16,051) 96,388 [12,439
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES
Capital contributions 10,000 0 (10,000
Interest earnings 2.000 4214 2,714
Rents 12,000 12,000 4}
[nterest expensc o (27.341) (26,401) 940
Grant match (2,500) 0 2,500
System upgrade (24,150) 0 24,130
Net Income (Loss) $ 46,042y § 86201 % 132,243

The noles to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

67




~ STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE QF CASH FLOWS:
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013
VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  {(NEGATIVE)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In-flows
Sales of water 3 437,000 § 484141 3 47,141
Cash Qut flows
Salaries and wages (80,588) (80,136) 452
Benefits {38,105 (33.750) 4,355
Services and supplies (2064735 (165,014 41,463
Prepaid expenses 1] (2.400) (2,400)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics 111,834 202,845 61,011
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Rent 12,000 12,000 0
Customer deposits 1] (1,229 (1,229)
Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activities: 12,000 10,771 (1,229)
CASHTLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Capital-contributed 10,000 o (10,000)
Cash-Out flows
System upgrade (24,150) 0 24,150
Capital outlay (70,500} (13,399) 57,101
Debt service (26,910) (26.911) (&)
Interest expense (27,341 (14,431) . 12910
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital Related Activities (138,901} {54,741) 84,160
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earnings ' 2,000 4,308 2,308
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (13,067 163,183 176,250
Cash - beginning 899313 900:422. 1,109
Cash - ending $ 886246 $ 1063605 & 177,339

‘The netes to financial statenicits are
an integral partof thes slatement.

68




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENIIES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITEVE
AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS {NEGATIVE)
OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer nse fees 3 212,825 § 214,468 § 1,643
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 75,692 73,025 1,767
Benefits 34,502 29,842 4,660
Services and supplies 79485 83,542 (4,057
Depreciation 40,000 41,962 {1,962)
Total Operating Expenses 229,679 229271 408
Gperating Income (Loss) (16;854) {14,803 2051
NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE)
[nierest income 500 994 494
Inferest expense ' (2,789) 2,789) 0
Net income {L.oss) by (19,143) § (16.598) % 2,543

The notes to financial statements are
an infegral part of this statement.

69




STOREY COUNTY,. NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FENAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In Flows
Sewer Fees $ 212,825 % 213,869 % 1,044
Cash Out Flows _
Salarics and wages (75.692) {72,073) 3,619
Benefits (34,502) {29.843) 4,659
Service and supplies (79,483) {83,992} (4,507)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 23,144 27,961 4,815
CASH FLOWS FROM NON=CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Out Flows
Capital Qutlay {25,000) 0 25,000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash In Flows
Capital coniributed by customers £0,000 0 (10,000}
Capitdl contribuied by grant 0 152428 152428
Cash Qut Flows
Interest expense (2,789) (2,789} 0
Debt Service (3,287) (3,287) 0
Grant match (£40,844) (88,474) 52,37¢
System upgrade 0 (132,428) (152,428)
Net cash provided (used) by capital related
financing activities (138,920) (96,5500 42.370
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 500 1,020 520
Net increase (decrease). in cash (140,274) (67,569) 42,703
Cash - beginning 257188 248,773 (8,415)
Cash - ending b 116914 § 181,204  § 64,290

The notes to (inancial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

70




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALl AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2013
BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
2012 ADDITIONS . DEDUCTIONS 2013
STATE OF NEVADA FUND
Assets
Cash % 142825 § 78376 % 1,042,738 § 78,463
Liabilities o
Due Other Governmenis 3 142825 § 978,376 % 1,042,738 % 78,463
STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Assels
Cash $ 191,412 b 3,543,142 % 3729452 % 5,102
Liabilitics
Due Other Governments $ 191,412 3 3,543,142  § 3,729,452 % 3.102
STOREY COUNTY SCHCOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE
Assets _ _
Cash 3 36931 8 683475, . % 719421 % 985
‘Liabilities
Dii¢ Other Governménts 3 36,931 3 683475 % 719421 § 985
VIRGINIA CITY CONVENTION AND
TOURISM AUTHORITY
Assels
Cash 5 14,657 % 90,160  § 104,817 § 0
Liabilities
; Due Other Governments 5 14,657 3 920,160  § 104,817 3 0
| DISTRICT ATTORNEY RESTITUTION FUND
Assets
Cash $ 0 3 15 3 15 % 0
Liabilities
Due Other Governmétits $ 0 $ 15 % 15 % 0
TOTAL - ALL FUNDS
Assets
Cash $ 385825 % 5295168 % 5306443 & 84,550
Liabilisies
Due Other Governmenis 5 385,825 5 5,295,168 3§ 5,590,443  § 84,550

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

71




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2013-AND 2012

JUNE 30,
2013 2012
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land ¥ 387,739 § 280,259
Antigue Furniture 75,000 0
Infrastructure 43,256,707 43,236,707
Construction it progress 2,229317 2,229.317
Building and improvements 9,861,012 9.303,357
Machinery and eguipment 6,850,249 6,441,491
Park Improvenients 850,595 671,490
Total General Fixed Assets § 63551239 § 62,182,671
INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SOURCE:
General Fund. 3 11,587.961 § 11,039,641
Read Fund 43,582,227 45,582,152
Fire Fend 6,509 6,309
Virginia City Tourism Commission 622,481 i}
Wildland Fire Protection Fund 2,710:274 2,492,532
" Fourth Ward Trastee 1,379,368 1,579,368
Sheriff's lail 1,462,619 1,462,619
Total Investment in General Fixed Assets % 63551238 5 62,182.621

Thenotes e findncial statements are
an intergraf part of this statement.

72




oL

JusuEs s1ep) jo ped jeifour ue
9JE STUDIUDJEIS [BIOUELES O} SO0 Y],

6ET156°E §  6PT0689 § 565058 $ TIYI9%s 8 LICRTTET 0§ ADLVSTEF  § 0 DOOSL $ 65LU8E $ 51955y Pox1,] [RIDUR0) [eTo]
£5£9'606'E G0Y°LT $657058 1PL9EL'E 0127962 [} [} o NOLLYSEOT ANV THNLTND
LTTTYS'SY yovTssl 0 GS0°ELL 0 LOL9STEyY  § 0 0 SLATILS ANY AYMHEDIH
6LE'GER'D 319°01T ¥ [} B90+E1'T £69'06¥F 0 S0 0 £19)BS 21N [RIO],
0zg'16 0Z8°16 Jusunedact Bup g
ANAN 611651 . JustusFeueyy Aousoury
PLTOI'T 096757 P16:081 UCHIRIOL] DEL] PURIPHA
6059 &0¢'9 ang
L5485 B1EDST) $PROrE’L £69'068 g

ALZAYS DIr18Nd

Q00°GL 900'9L 0 i [ 0 0 0 - [eIIpn{ o,
9161 916'1L AaI0my 101081
060°F: 060V oD oSNy
aviolans
TLE'LYT'L . ESSETN i S LPLLITY P16 €Y | 0 £ 000'sL 6EL°LRE TUDUIUIZAOS} [R15UD0) |BIO [,
858 ITe'y ¥20°FIS 05P'861°C vle'ery't  § Ql1PSHL SANBISINDY - 110
bro'89y's PO 8uK'| Norqheg 111
18¥°7E9 1H1°E6 DL8'9¥E 000°cL $ 005201 UOISSINIWIO,) WSLING L AV 2SI A
1LV°66€ OpL'LIT STLTI8I spunoin - Suipying
4% 04 43 Gd 2 108588y
| TASY LT9°08 L6TF J0)IPRY - 1BPI03Y
LI1¥'6T LI¥'6T $I2INSEDI | - Y515
ShPBLL §  ser'op g 191°L1 b3 6h8F11 $ SIOUOISSIUIUG,)
INAWNATAOD TV IIANTD
IYIi0L INFHWGINOE  SINIWIAOEIN SENTINIACHNT - SSTUOOUE NI FUALDMELSVAANI  ZANLINYAA NV ALIAILDY NV NOTIONNS
ANV AFANIHOVIA Mvd ANY DNIJUNEG  NOLLOITIESNOD ANCHLINY
107 *0€ AN Q3ANT ¥YTA THL U0
ALIALLDY NV NOILONOA A€ SLISSY GHX14 TVHANID 40 ATINATHOS

VAVAEN ‘ALNNQD ATIOLS




L

Juawzels siyg yo yed erio ue
218 SJUSUME}S [RIOURUL] O] 010U S |

6LT°165E9 8 i8F7T9 g 0 g LETOPL g 179°781°79 ¢ SIPSSY Pax1 ] [RIBURL) [R10 )
CSHBO6E i ) 0 SOL'6L1 0ES°0EL'E NORVEEITE ANV TANLIND
LTTTRS SV 0 4] GL TE1'IRSSY SLHTHELS ANV AVMHOIH
HLESESS [ 0 YeL'EIE £29'125°9 ARJeS 21N Je30
07816 0e816 yuowpedact Fuip|ing
611°6EY 611765y JuatraBeuely Aousdrawey
PLEOLL'T hL'LIE TESTOF'T UONRS0E] 211 PUBIPM,
60E'9 60E'G CN |
FALNE I $10°96 £H816P'E Ipuoyg
ALAAVS DITdNd
S00°9L 0 0 . 0 900°9/ JelRpnyqeio)
060°t 060y nnog jornsict
GL6TIL 9I6'1L Aoy omsic
Tviolanr
TLE'LPI'L 134779 ] $  IDEESE 0622279 JUSEIUIIACT)Y |RISUSD) [B10]
8SR°ITE Y 1€9°LET LTTHR0Y AMIRHSIUILIPY ~ B0
PPO'R9p°| Fro°89¢°1 yoeqLed 1
18+°779 18¥2T9 g 0 UQISSIIHNOL) WSLNG§, A1) erndnp
[LF66€ LSS T 0GRt spunour) - Suipying
LT ey 1085988y
yzs'ce vrs'ss INIPNY - JP1003Y
LI¥6T LIV6T . IDIMSEILL 0L
SyF'SLI $ CPF'8LI $ SJISUOISSAULUO.)
LNTWNATAOD TVHINGD
£10T am aumy SUAISN VUL SNOLLATIA SNOLLIdAayY 102 "1 Anr ALIALLDY ONV NOTLORNd
S148SSV SLASSY
GaXI TYHINGD CEX1 TVHIANID

£107 ‘0 ANNT QAN WVEX JHL 90k
AJLIALLDY GNY NOLLONNA A8 - SLASSY daXid IvHINID 40 2TNA3HIS
VOVAIN ALNNOD ATIOLS




SL

JuswIes sy Jo ed eidan e
35T SIUDWISIEIS [BIOUBULS O SOIOLALT,

1TOT '[ 12quiadad] 000'rs $

0T "1 $0qWana 000'zs §

6147 "1.42qW2230 000'6Y S

10T °1 Jagueq pi0'Ly S

L10T '1 12qusdad 000’y 3

910Z 1 VWA ¢00'ey- §

“SHOT: "1 4aQWaoad 000y $

PLOZ 1 AW G00'8E. §

€107 "1 10G0203¢1 §00'LE § one'TeL  § noo've  $ goo'oEs S %$ 000'6$8 § o10T18T/T1 {0171 Buipuinyg 921qng sug endes angg)
(dwaxg xef) go1og $a10g

“JEDA Youd jo | Jaquisdae] e pled Jsasi pue
adiound pue | sudf 96 pied Ao sataiil gis
"1 3qUIH9EL A00'CL

STOTTT 0waaad 000°Le
FTOE "1 Sqazed 000°y9
ECOZ. T $2qW033¢1 (100' 19
ZTOZ "1 12qWE0aC ON0'RS
1202 1 Loquadsd goo°es
HZ0T.'1 19401023 000'CS
6107 '} 124010037 000°15 -
F10T ‘1 1qu0aa 0006
L10T| 19qUIa03Q QOB LY -
S10T.'| 12410390 000'Sk
S10T "1 42quRoagE 006" ch
FEOT [ 194 WE000¢E 00D T
£10T [ 30qUERI3(T 00D 5€

WM A NG A A

chpie1s § 00FeE 8 000°958 Yol 00y 06s 8 M 0EBERT (cioyy jepdesy siuted v ongy)
“PUOE AO[AR(T AULOUOS FUCT AJA0DY] DJqENE,].
YOI0T kg
puagt ey 10 elusins

0T P Aenuer poo'sl § oon'si 3 o00%1 % 00ose 8 %8 00U'P6T 5 PLET/9T/S: {UOUBISIURUPY QIO SJALEN]
ROLIOWY 303 $21815 pawrp) ang))
PLE] JO SPUOE-SANUDADY 3010
faropg 10 Auno
Spuog anuaasy

HONVIVE DRIGNVISING CT07 0f T UVIA DNIWAA  TI0C 0% anii qIVE AMSSTA0 TONOT AN
4O ININAYA 20 SAEL IONYTVE Girvd IONVIVE  LSTWALNI INACWY T
€167 ‘0 ANNE

SHONFA T TAN LA NN SNOLLVOITO TYALIVEINGD HEHIO GNY
SCNOE SNOILYOITRO TYHENED 40 HIUaHDS
VAVATN AINNOD ATIOLS

g 4o | offeq




9L

“Juuas sigr o ped [eaSayur ve
QIR S|USLUDIEIS [RIAUCUL] O) SAIOU 1),

IS2UaILY puT
silisupd fuprjowt yuow ad €290 § . for'ts § €8S 8 SIELS S % 2008EL § 186LAL (L86H/ELI60 10 UONEISIIUPY auto}y
SI0ULE] EDLIOWY JO Sopeig pajIup
Loy paunbae - savtassg Io1sep
100 1ZPO1D-AMOAIE RIANED) AnCT)
1861 5AU3E SPUCH INUBAPY FaMmag

1 Alenuef
wo pred |udizund pe.jsimuar pue
1 &mp uo pied Ljno jsaimu

LEOT/OE/S-P 0L/ SN0 109819 [08°3E § SSELYS § ezl % 99F'0vs  § %/ ¥ ano'riL § L661/8E¢
saeal ¢
Pasaxd o) Juu pegiad ¢ d6) fng doquaidog
puIG (7 YaIepl Ajmue-uas pred aq o} 210N op0'esT S 060'0s  § anoGeEs  § %9 (GRS N THTTE

163K Yowago

*17 129120303 uo- pred 1satn

pue wrdpund puw z-aung

uo pred Ajue jsaao5s (um
S10E/9 - PLIOE SIBDK [BISH 98T ML § DLS°8KE 8 98ThL  § 958'TTT % %58T ono'ozs LogeTT randy go yueg - ang (£ 2)

NYVOT W, ANITE

1L yara Jo | Faquinasc] uo-pied saze pue
apdyoutad pue § sunp ue pred _n.._co JETSI TR

LZOT 71 J2QuIasS 000°EL §

9Z0T ' J9quvaaq DODQL §

SZOE "1 99U 00099 §

PTOT ‘[ 12quIddg] 00'E9 §

£20T T 120W2090 00G'09 § T T 000'FE S 0005E8  § %E 000688 §  DlgTSTT (0711 Bupunyg anjqag sug eides ancp

C {1dwiang Xet) gp10z 591108

PHWIINOT T H AT YINFTHIA

] T ONIANYV IR TIOT DE ANy AVAXONTEAG 2107708 aNir TV ANSSIE6  HFRSH 0
40 INSWAVd 40 SINIEL AINVIVE arvd IONVIVE  ISTWALNE  INNOWV v
€102 "0€ ANNT

SHONHATY TANLNL WOH SNOLLVYOITE0 TVIELD VY LINOD YHHLIO ONV
SUNOH SNOLLYDFTHO TYYEANGD 40 FTQMRHDS
VAVAIN'ALINNOD ATEOLS

Tio 7 a8y




DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSTONAL CORPORATION

CARSON CITY QFFICE . RENQ OFFICE
502 E. JOHN STREET, SUITE H 646 TUMBOLDT STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706 MEMBER RENO, NEVADA #9509
TELEPHONE NUMBER (175) 882-3615 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 329-7300
FAX NUMBER (775) §82-2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMBER (775) 329-8332.
NEVADA SOCIETY OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G
AND ON COMPLIANCE.AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America-and the.
standards applicableto financial audits contained in Govermment A uditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County,
‘Nevada, asof and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Storey'Cmmty, Nevada’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 6,
2013,

Internal Contiol Over Financial Reporting

Inplanning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we.considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal conirol

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our apinions.on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Storey Coutity, Nevada’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
empioyees, in the normal course of performing their assi gned functions, to prevent, or detectand correct misstatements
-on a timely basis. A material weakness isa. deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ininfernal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that.a material misstatement of the entity’s.financial stateinents will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies;,
n internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with. governance.

Our considerationof internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not desigtied to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Qther Matters

Statement amiouints, However, providing an.opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, -and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliatice or othier matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

77




Purpese of this Report

The purpose of this report is solelyto describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
Carson City, NV

September 6, 2013

78




CARSON CITY OFFICE
3250 RETAIL DRIVE, SUITE 135
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706
TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615
FAX NUMBER (775) 882-2339
EMAIL - dapepaltdee@égmail.eorm

DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

MEMBER
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCQUNTANTS
NEVADA SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RENO OFFICE
646 HUMBOLDT STREET
RENQ, NEVADA 89509

TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 325-7800

FAX NUMBER (775} 325-8332
EMAIL - dapepaltd@gmail.com

AUDITORS REPORT ON PRIOR YEAR'S RECOMMENDATIONS

To The Honorable Board of Cotnty Comrnissioners

Storey County, Nevada

‘Wehavereviewed the status of our recommendationis included in Iast year’s audit report dated September 18, 2012, This

review indicated:

1. We recommended thil the reconciliztion ofaccounts and approval of writeoff% in the Fire department ambulance billings be
authorized through a different department to. ensure proper collection and write off contrals, This was implemented during
fiscal year 2013 by bringing ambulance billings and collestions back under the supervision of (‘ounty cmployees.

2. We recommended expenditures be monitored to prevent exccedmg appropriations. This was nol. nnplemmted during fiscal
year 20113, since live special revenue finds and three programs in the general lund exceeded budgeted appropriations.

3. We recommended expenditures over 310,000 in the Fire Special Revenue Fund be approved by the County Manager or
Comptroller. This was partially implemented in the curreat year.

4. We recommended eare should be taken in the assignment of funds and aceount numbers prior to recording the liabilities in
the accounting records. This was partially implemented in the current year.

3. We recommended reviewing aceount nutmbers and names in the Federal/State Grant Fund to further differentiate the Federal
and State grant revenues and expenditures. Ths was partially finplemented in'the2013 fiscal year.

e =

David A, Pringle, CPA, LTD.

Carson City, Nevada

September 6, 2013

79




DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

CARSON CITY OFFICE RENO OFFICE
3250 RETAIL DRIVE, SUITE 35 646 HUMBOLDT STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706 MEMBER RENO, NEVADA 89509
TELEPRONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615 AMERICA;N INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMB_ER (775) 319-7800
FAX NUMBER (775) 882-2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMEER (775) 329-8332
ENAIL- dapepaltdec@gmail.com REVADA SOCIETY OF EMAIL - dlacpaltd@gmail.com

CERTIF{ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS REPORT ON CURRENT YEAR’S RECOMMENDATIONS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storsy County, Nevada

We have andited the financial statements of Storey County, Nevada for the year ended June 30, 2013, and have
issued our report thereon dated September 6, 2013.. As part of our audit, we made a study and evaluation of the
County’s system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary solely to determine the nature,
timing and extent of our auditing procedures. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary to
express an opiition on-the system of internal accounting control taken as a whale, and we do not express such an
opinion.

However during our audit we became aware of certain matters that; while not involving material weaknesses in.
internal accounting control, are opportunities for increasing contréls and operating efficiency. This letter does not
affect our report dated Septeinber 6, 2013, on the financial statements of Storey County, Nevada,

Current Years Audit Recommendations

. Weecommend monitoring expendimres to prévent exceeding budgeted amiounts 2§ expenditirés exceeded appropriatiens in
five Special Revenue Funds and three programs i the General Fund. One Special Revenue Fund also had a deficit fund
\ balance. :

2. Werecommend more care be taken in the recording of cash réceipts. There were numerous instances wliere revenue was
receipted into the incorrect cash account,

3. 'Based upon the amount expenditures exceeded appropriations in atmost every category in the Fire and Sheriff Jail Special
Reveniue Funds, we recommend expenditures over $10,000 be approved by the County Manager or Comptroller.

4. Continued care should be taken in the assignment of funds and account numbers prior to recording the labilities in the
accounting records. Cerlain expenditures appear to be more correetly charged to the special revenue funds than the general
fund.

5. Werecommend account names in the Federal/State Grant Fund be yeviewed and adjusted to further diffcrentiate the Federal and
State grant revenues and expenditures,

6. Werecommend bank reconciliations be balaniced to thi'general ledger, as well as be reviewed and approved by the. Comptroller
on g monthly basis.

7. Wereconunend adjusting beginning cash batances at July [, 2013, either through Toans or wansfers, in order o eliminaie the
deficit cash balances in the Fire and Jail Building Funds.

The status of the above recommendations must be reviewed during your next audit engagement. We have already

discussed these recommendations with the County Comptroller, and will be pleasedto discuss them in further detail
al your convenience.

David A, Pringle, CPA, LTD
Carson City, Nevada

September 6, 2013

80




DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

CARSON CITY OFFICE RENO OFFICE
3250 RETAIL DRIVE, SUITE 135 646 HUMBOLDT STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706 MEMBER RENO, NEVADA 89509
TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 329-7500
FAX NUMBER (775) 882-2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMBER (775) 329-8332

NEVADA SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To The Honorable County Commissioners,
Story County, Nevada

Report on Compliance for Fach Major Federal Program

We have audited Storey County, Nevada’s compliance with the types.of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Storey County, Nevada’s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Storey County, Nevada did not have any programs that
qualified as major, The federal programs that were audited as major are identified in the sunumary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 6iicomplistee for-cach of Storey County, Nevada’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliafice reqtiireinents referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards -generally ‘accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the ‘audit to obtain reasonable assurance about. whether
| noncompliance with the types of compliance requirement referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
| on a-major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basia, evidence about Storey Caunty,
Nevada’s compliance with those requirements arid performing such other procedures s we considered necessaryin the.
circumstances;

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Storey Connty, Nevada’s compliance,

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Storey County, Nevada complied, in all material respects, with the types of campliance reguiremerits
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each.of its- major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2013,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Storey County, Nevada, is responsible for establishing and maintaininig effective internal control over
c,omp!{ance with the: types of compliance requirements reférred to above, In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considerad Storey County, Nevada’s interrial control over compliance with the types of requireéments

51




thatcould have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstance for the putpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in dccordance with OMB Circular A-133, but.not for the
purpose- of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a titngly basis, A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies, In intemal conitrol over
compliance, such that theré is @ reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a foderal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely'__basis. A significant
defictency in interrial ontéol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in interrial control over
compliance with a type of comipliance requirement of a federal programs that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over éompliance, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed ta identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may €xist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this repott on intema]_ control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requiréments of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,
this repot is not suitable for any other purpose,

David A. Pringle CPA, LTD. .~
Carson City, Nevada

September 6, 2013

82




8

10-S I-dANH-T] auou ST1'6 STE6 szI’6 £0L°0T

JuoIssiate ) asuodsay

Asusdrowy epeaap 10 RS
C-WHET auou £26°LT 661°6T 6T6°LY 00902

Aapes-agqngd 10 warupedag eprasy
(8)SEGEP-TI-TE/ OWIO . £99°9F 000'0¥ 000°0F 000SS FO5'C1

HONBAIDSAL] JLI0)SIE] BRLADN JO NG
61/80d/Ti Anstudojaaagg anwouosy auou 1£5%6¢ FH6'6T 000°0F 8TTHI

JO 2 SIOWAAGD BPEADN
817:1d/71puandojaaa] JIUONa  006°0T 60E°161 909 000'TS1 87741

JO00IQ SJOWDAOD) BPRADN
auou $L1°88 YA 49| 08891 GO0000°05T 1Z1'eE
TET/VAS/YASH Ly H9k L6 0 16T°T5¢ 99°01

FA118210 JO UOISIAL BPRAIN
SHOLVAS/VASN 060°19 §  L9E°L $  opLor §  ORLY $ $99°01

JANSHI0.] J0 MOESIANCT BPRAIN

HAGNAN ONIAALLNICE INNOWY  SINIWISUNESIA SLJEHOTY LNIOWY  ¥IIWNN VA1)
FALLLNA HONOYEHL-SSYd HOLVYIN @AY Y TYdagad
TVH3QAd

TJo [ 9y

AINVLSISSY TYIONYNIE TY AL 40 31NAIHDS

£10T "0 AN QIANT WYIA THL VO

VAVAIN "ALNOOD ATYOLS

Fultield SR
sy Sumuaed pue
Suugel f, 101523 NjgNJ BRI SnopIezep] AstsFeiauy
UolRNSHINUPY APRJTS SRl SnoplezeL pue aurjadij

SLO
Ki3peg Apmydi Aunungo)) pue oy
uehensunupy A10eg sgped ), Aemydiy) uonen

UCLIBAIDSDI  DHO)SIT
PR-UI-SIUBED) pUNE UOIIBAIOSAI] MIOISIE]
JOLIOILY Mj3 JO Juotaedo(]

HINNUIUY AN Iy
JuRIfy Y018 Justudopas] Ajuntikio;y
Juatudogeaagy pire Smuuelg Ajunumo:} Jo 20130

iR 100d DA
Rie0) 3005 wawdojaaag] Arunwwo)
twwdoppaseg pue Fueer] Auowwoes 10 20410

PRI 258 HIV SN
SANANLSEI U] {BIUSINOANAUT EPRAIN - VHUVY

s1opuIFug JO FaN) 030 2010

yuusBeury jony
OURISISSY bﬁ&c@.gzﬁaucqu
DILAIDG 152104 2oy Jo inauedag

wEm L IR VASN
AMIVSISEY ANSA04 aAteladooy
VAIZS 15210,] DINKNITY Jo Juamnredac]

NOLLJRIOSHA LNVID/WYIDOU] MO INYEY TV aaad4d




12}

8F6£9 $

auout auou 05T LOI 78L'8T 000°G68 d3-3£08
"S0ALd Uy 128°C 1737 000'e LIO'LE
{A131eS 1N 30 WRurEda (] TPRABIY
DANASTIAL 64907 6L9°0T 6L90T 6L5°0T L6
[A3a1es-011q0 . Jo susuwrnedacy epRAN
PO656/S90tMG HERINE pUe.  auou LTRY eFE1L £P1°LY 695°¢6
yieaH Jo juaurieda(l BpRASN
[0-Ei0T 61L'G 000's 000°c 000's £00°68
JSANIITY PUE AIBIQIT] 9IRS BPRASN]
10-ST-dAWH-TL auon 056°1 061 006'¢ £0L0T
AlossiuEmo)-asuocdsyy
-Aouadiag vpeadN JO A8Ig
AN ONIAFLNAT] ANAOKWY  SLNTWISUNASIT A ElERET INNOWY  HAENN YOED
JALILNG HONOYHL-SSVd HOLYIN TUVYMY Tvddaad
TYHAEd

240 7 98

€107 '0€ ANAT ATANA AVIA FHL 104
FONVLSISSY TVIONYNE TV AHAE 40 TINAITHIS
VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATIOLS

STHOWIASINGSIC] YSE) 210}

(a2 0107 sopeg puog 1waloag proey [FA
IIAIIG ONUDADY [BLLIIU]
‘Ainsear] oy Jo waumedacy

AJLINDOG PUR[AWIOH MG
werSond JueIny ARINDAS PURISWOH
ANIN39E pueoWoL] Jo usunedac]

soLEeg
SUEI) SUBLO)IA ] JWaaSeut)y Aousdrmy
A112n00g pueeIoH Jo 1awpedac)

2UBIPIIY)
WE0) }o0[g SANAIDG AHUNIIRIO.)
SR TUR] PUR URZP| 1Y J0Y UONRISINUPY

SpI0oaY {EOHOISIF SZmSI
SJHRID) SPI050Y pug SUCHEIgN,] ﬁ..nu_uﬁm._x {BUONRN
UGHBNSIHIIDY SPICOSY PUe SIAIYOTY [RUsI BN

BujuresL, wazer
suRID) i uejg pue
Fupupel | 11998 3NN [RLIRIRA ShopItZey Aouaduey
UDHEBNSINRUPY -£|13]BS SpeLIsiely snopiezery pue suljadt]

NOLLIRIDSHT INVIDAVHDOd AOINVED TV ada d




SCHEDULE 3

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? yes X no
Reportable condition identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _X 1o
Federal Awards

Internal Co_'nﬁoi_ OVer imajor program:

Material wezkness identified? yes X no
Reportable condition identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes  __X_ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on-compliance
for major programs: ynqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133 Section .510{a)? yes X _ 1o

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program
12,121 Nevada Environmental Inifrastructure -
ARRA (Type B)
14228 Comsmunity Development Block Grant
(Type B)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish _
between Type A and Type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low=risk auditee? —_yes X__no

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
There were no reportable conditions, material weaknesses or instances of noncompliance related to the financial

statements that are required to be reported in accordance with paragraphs 5.18 through 5.20 of Government 4 uditing
Standards.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
There were no audit findings required to be reparted by Circular A-133, Section .510(a).

85




NOTE A -

NOTEB -

NOTEC-

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompariy schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity
of Storey County, Nevada under programs of the federal government for the yearended June 30,2012. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requiremenits of GMB-Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The Schedule presentsonlya selected
portion of the operationis of Storey County, Nevada, it is not intended to.and doés not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, orcash flows of Storey County, Nevada.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedules are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such

Expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMRB Circular A-87, Cost
Principlesfor State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, where in certaintypes of expendifures are

not allowable or até limited as to reimbursement,
(2) Pass-through entities and identifying numbers are presented where available.
MATCH AMOUNTS

Amounts listed under Match Amount are on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are either in-kind
or cash. :

86




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

RNy
Meeting date: November 19, 2013 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular Agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection and prioritization of two applications
for the 2014 Community Development Block Grant Program. Possible projects include:
Canyon General Improvement District Project, Storey County Senior Center Project and
the sponsorship of the Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Respite Care project.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve the project proposals from Canyon General
Improvement District, Storey County Senior Center and the sponsorship of the Retired
Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Respite Care project for the 2014 Community
Development Block Grant Applic\afbn.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin Q/‘J\’
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Two public meetings have been conducted to explain the 2014 Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and seek input from the public on potential
projects. At the October 15, 2013, Commissioners Meeting we heard presentations from
four entities on projects. County staff has reviewed each of the projects proposed and we
recommend approval of Canyon General Improvement District Project, Storey County
Senior Center Project and sponsorship of the Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP)

Respite Care project.
5. Supporting materials:  Agenda Item Request
Agenda Action Report
Project Proposals
6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

.
Leiaad L

Agenda Item No. i ?)




STOREY COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OFFICE

26 So B Street, PO Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775} 847-0968 * Fax (775) 847-0949

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To: Vanessa Stephens From: Cherie Nevin
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Date:11/08/13 Re: November 19, 2013 Commission Meeting
Agenda Item Request

Vanessa,

Please add the following items to the Storey County Commissioners Meeting
Agenda for November 19, 2013:

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Selection and priovitization of two applications for the 2014 Community
Development Block Grant Program. Possible projects include: Canyon General
Improvement District Project, Storey County Senior Center Project and the
sponsorship of the Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Respite Care
project.

I have attached the following documents:
e Agenda [tem Request
¢ Agenda Action Report
e Project Proposals

Please note that Pat has not signed the Agenda Action Report due to being out of
the office.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need anything else.

Thank you!
)
LRl

Cherie Nevin




Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (ftems recefved after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: { | =1F — | 3 Date Request Submitted: [ } - &~ | 2

Agenda Item Requested: SC Ce C h di 9 Dviagrv tat ‘26 fens ofF ,OL(Z&J!’QJ
| Fov +nt Conam & f Rloci 6ot roc,/a-@

This item is intended for: [ ] Discussion nly [Z{D;scussmn and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

SkSupporting documentation is attached [_] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: ( :Dfﬁ (,@ M V]-eq_h

(please print name clearly)

Address: Pa [go)c - \/: ./‘&“MA.. Gt?b) nv g‘f'f"/a
Phone: 6‘-‘,7— Oqstp Emall(optzonal) CV‘{MVIP \Sfaff"—'} ('{JM{‘M JY%

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

I Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - —>
Date Request Received: Received: [ ]InPerson [ | ViaFAX By:
[] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item:
(] Item Approved for Agenda by: , Date:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email: vdufresne@storeycounty.org




Canyon GID
2014 CDBG Grant Proposal
Utility Lab

Canyon General Improvement District (District) is seeking grant funding to construct a new
utility building that would contain a training room and laboratory. This much needed facility
would provide many benefits to the District. The lab would provide an area for the utility to
perform necessary testing of water and wastewater and would save the District approximately
$10,000 a year by doing testing themselves that they currently outsource. There is a possibility
that the lab could be utilized by Storey County as well. The building would contain a small
break room with a restroom, and that room could also be used for operator training. This facility
will be a 1,200 square foot steel building (approximately).

The District has had a successful history with CDBG Grants. The District was awarded CDBG
grants in 2003 for the Lockwood Water System Improvements Design, and in 2006 and 2008 for
the Canyon GID Wastewater Treatment Facility and Lockwood Sewer System.

The cost of the building is estimated to be approximately $250,000. The District would seek
$200,000 in grant funds and would contribute $50,000 of capital reserve funds to the project.




Storey County Senior Center
2014 CDBG Grant Proposal
Kitchen Upgrade

Storey County Senior Center serves a hot lunch to approximately 48 seniors per day. They are
residents of Virginia City, Virginia City Highlands, Gold Hill, and Mark Twain. For many, this
is there one good meal of the day. Similarly, for many, they are living on fixed incomes.

The Senior Center is more than thirty years old. Some of the kitchen facilities are aging and in
need of repair. For example, the two stoves need replacing and the main refrigerator is working
but frequently needs repairs.

Eighteen of the lunch meals are served to seniors who cannot get out of their homes. The van is
also aging and when it needs repair, there is no budget to do so. Recently, the director spent over
$3,600 on repairs to the van.

This ongoing maintenance and repair of the kitchen facilities and the senior van cuts into the
annual budget of the center. Consequently, there are not adequate funds to operate the facility
and perform its basic mission: a gathering space for seniors where they can obtain a nutritious
meal at minimal cost.

This draft letter is to request funds from the Community Development Block Grant program to
help defray these ongoing operational costs of the Senior Center—that are not budgeted with the
Storey County funds that support the center. This request is for $25,000 to replace the aging
refrigerator ($5,000), the two Wolf Stoves ($5,000), the counter tops in the kitchen (87,000), and
finally for repairs and maintenance of the Senior Van e.g., tires, annual repair, ete. ($3,000), and
$5,000 for reserve to cover the costs of other unexpected kitchen or vehicle problems.

The purpose of this grant request is to enable the Senior Center to avoid cutting into their
operating budget to pay for these equipment repairs. With ecach expense, the center goes further
into the red—and the services to its constituents are put in jeopardy due to having to choose
between keeping the facilities maintained and providing nutritious meals and transportation.

This is not a choice the director should have to make. Ifthereis a way to cover the costs of these
unexpected expenses without cutting into their operating budget, it should be done. This is
CDBG request can make a real difference in the quality of life of dozens of seniors and keep the
facility operational for the next decade—without extensive remodeling.




Retired Senior Volunteer Program
2014 CDBG Grant Proposal
Respite Care Program

In project year 2011 & 2012, the RSVP Respite Care Program was developed in Carson City
utilizing CDBG funds. It is our goal to expand Respite to the rural counties more fully. And
with your help we can achieve that goal, utilizing the one of the three grants available from State
CDBG. Rural RSVP is eligible for sponsorship of this new program using the Governor’s Office
of Economic Development, Rural Community Development CDBG funds. We respectfully
request your sponsorship for this lifesaving program in the amount of $60,000 in order to sustain
and grow RSVP Respite Care in the rural counties of Nevada.

The RSVP Respite Care Program provides respite (regular breaks) several times per week for
two to four hours or more to senior caregivers who provide 24/7 care for elder family members.
The loved ones are suffering from Dementia, Alzheimer’s, COPD, Parkinson’s disease, Cancer,
and many other debilitating disorders. Respite assistance is vital in lowering the stress levels of
caregivers as regular breaks allow for a healthier quality of life, and can even save the life of the
caregiver.

The goal is to prevent the institutionalization of their loved ones or even themselves by never
having a break from 24/7 care giving. RSVP Respite Care volunteers provide caregivers with
essential breaks so that they may engage in enjoyable activities and attend to their own needs.
There is no charge to the caregiver for this respite care service.

The need for respite care in rural Nevada is critical. Studies by the National Caregivers
Association show that 40% - 60% of caregivers die before the person being cared for; thus
increasing the likelihood of the loved one being prematurely institutionalized.

RSVP strives to meet demands of seniors in need of Respite as they are presented; however,
there has been a tremendous increase in requests for our services that we won’t be met without
additional trained volunteers. Since January, 2013 alone - 52 RSVP Respite volunteers provided
more than 14,000 hours of respite care to 178 clients and caregivers. And the wait list continues
to grow.

We endeavor to recruit, train, background check and stipend 20 new respite volunteers who will
provide this lifesaving service to 120 additional respite clients and caregivers at a mere fraction
of the cost of institutionalization. The cost of institutionalization averages $75,000 per person,
per year. This expense falls to local and county governments for indigent seniors. If we can
keep these seniors independent and in their own homes it’s not only the right thing to do, it’s the
most fiscally sound alternative and a win-win for everyone.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 19, 2013 Estimate of time required: 15 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Nicole Barde request as to status of the one-quarter cent sales tax to fund the Nevada
Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railroad

2. Recommended motion Staff recommends this matter be heard for discussion only and has no
recommended motion at this time.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: County Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: As this item was submitted by a member of the public, Staff generally does
not prepare an Agenda Action Report. However, Ms Barde has provided much appreciated
information in the nature of her questions which has enabled staff to better prepare the
Commission for this discussion. (Continued on Page 2)

5. Supporting materials:

Interlocal Agreement dated May, 20, 2010

Email to NCRVTRR Chairman Dwight Millard dated November 1, 2013
Comptroller estimate of monies due to County from 01/01/10 thru 08/31/13
Agenda Request Form submitted by Nicole Barde dated September 24, 2013

6. Fiscal impact: Unable to determine at this time

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attomey
8. Reviewed by:
=M Department Head Department Naine: Commissioner’s Office
A_—Ceunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e e




Agenda Item No. \L\

Staff summary (continued):

Specifically, Ms. Barde has asked the following questions:

L.

What is the status of the one-quarter cent sales tax? The Rail Commission’s
independent auditor has estimated the amount being held as approximately
$250,000. The Carson City Finance Director who handles the day-to-day books for
the Commission has confirmed this estimate. Using State Taxation reporting, our
Comptrolier has calculated the amount due to be $700,969 on remittances thru
August 2013 which, when added to a previously approved Rail Commission grant
match of $250,000 to acquire the Virginia City Depot brings the total now due to
$950,969 (excluding collections pending from September 1, 2013 to date).

Does Storey County have use of these funds for the Railroad Tunnel? Under an
Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and the Rail Commission, the Rail
Commission has agreed to “refund “collected sales tax from the calendar year 2010
forward. Please note that availability is not restricted to the Tunnel 6 project but
could be used for other rail related projects such as depot acquisition and/or
restoration, so long as it is “rail related”. Also note that provision number 3 of the
Interlocal Agreement allows the Rail Commission to withhold payment for the
purposes of paying train operations and track maintenance when there is a revenue
shortfall. Provision number 4 requires written notice to Storey County should that
happen and to date, we have received no such notification. In an email dated
November 1, 2013, Storey County notified the Rail Commission Chairman of our
anticipated draw down and we are awaiting response still pending at the time this
report was written.

Was the voting public aware of the withhold provision when the renewal for
this tax appeared on the November 2010 General Election Ballot? While staff
cannot specifically answer this question, a presumed answer might be “yes” as
approval of the Interfocal Agreement, which is a public document, in May of 2010
preceded the election by over five months. We should also note that the
predominant portion of sales tax collection is caused either as the result new
construction occurring in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center or sales tax generated
thru sales in the Virginia City/Gold Hill gift shops, restaurants and bars. With most
County residents forced to make the bulk of our taxable purchases “out-of-county”,
very little of the burden rests with our own citizens.




INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

This Interlocal Cooperative Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway (“Commission”) and the Board of
County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada (“Storey County™) on this 22 day of May, 2010,
notwithstanding a later date of execution of this Agreement.

WITNESSETH

_ WHEREAS, Storey County is a duly created County of the State of Nevada which is
authorized and empowered by Chapters 244 and 277 NRS to enter into an interlocal cooperative
agreement with another public entity; and

WHEREAS, the Commission, duly created by Chapter 566 Statutes of Nevada, 1993, is
authorized and empowered to do all things necessary to establish and maintain a railway which as
closely as possible reconstructs the historic Virginia & Truckee Railroad; and

WHEREAS, the Commission and Storey County may contract with each other pursuant to
the provisions of NRS 277.180 to perform any activity or undertaking which either entity is
authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, NRS 277.057 authorizes public entities such as the Commission and Storey
County to enter into cooperative agreements for the preservation, protection, restoration and
enhancement of unique and irreplaceable sites of historical significance. Both the Commission and
Storey County have determined that the reconstruction of the V&T Railway between Carson City
and Virginia City is unique, irteplaceable and is historically significant; and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance 144 adopted by Storey County in 1995, Storey County imposed
an additional tax upon retailers in Storey County at the rate of 1/4 of 1 percent of the gross receipts
of any retailer from the sales of tangible personal property sold at retail in Storey County on or after
1 January 1996 for the sole purpose of contributing Storey County’s share of the costs of the
reconstruction of the railroad. Afier an affirmative vote of a majority of voters of Storey County,
Storey County implemented the additional tax for a period of 15 years; the current additional 1/4 of
1 percent sales tax will “sunset” or expire as of 1 January 2011 unless renewed by the electorate of
Storey County; and

WHEREAS, the Commission and Storey County have enjoyed, and continue to enjoy, a
close “partnership” in the railroad reconstruction efforts. The Commission has been able to
reconstruct the railroad from Gold Hill to the outskirts of Carson City, however, the Commission
has not undertaken any construction of improvements of the railroad from its current terminus to the
old freight depot and adjoining parcel; the depot and parcel located within Virginia City and known
as 104 and 136 North E Street; Storey County APNs 01-096-01 and 01-096-02; and




WHEREAS, Storey County has undertaken feasibility studies to determine the necessary
improvements required to extend the railroad from its existing terminus to the former freight depot
of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad located within Virginia City; and

WHEREAS, the Commission and Storey County agree that reconstruction of the railroad
within Virginia City is a valued and valuable extension of the Commission’s reconstruction efforts;
and

WHEREAS, on 11 January 2010 the Commission approved two requests made by Storey
County; the first of such requests was to approve of a one-time grant of $250,000 to match Storey
County’s identical amount for the purchase of the old freight depot in Virginia City, The
Commission also approved a request from Storey County to return to Storey County any of the funds
collected by the Commission from the 1/4 of 1 percent additional sales tax imposed by Storey
- County Ordinance No. 144 for the balance of calendar year 2010; and

WHEREAS, Storey County will present a question to the Storey County electorate on the
November 2010 ballot to extend the 1/4 of 1 percent sales tax for the purpose of reconstruction and
maintenance of the railroad; specifically, for the reconstruction of the railroad through Tunnel No.
6 and to the old freight depot and adjoining parcel in Virginia City.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above-stated recitals, each and every
of which is incorporated into the parties’ Interlocal Cooperative Agreement, and the mutual
covenants, conditions and promises contained in this Agreement, the Commission and Storey County
agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. The Commission and Storey County agree that the “refund” of collected Storey
County sales’ taxes collected by the Commission pursuant to the requirements of Storey County
Ordinance 144 shall continue to be refunded to Storey County for calendar year 2010.

2. The Commission and Storey County agree that should the Storey County electorate
pass an extension of the 1/4 of 1 percent sales to be used solely for the recomstruction and
maintenance of the Virginia & Truckee Railway, the Commission will continue to refund to Storey
County, on amonthly basis, such sales taxes as are collected by the Commission under any renewed
or extended sales tax ordinance for the entire length of time that such additional 1/4 of 1 percent
sales tax is approved by the Storey County electorate. Storey County agrees, subject to the terms and
condifions of this Agreement, to apply the refunded sales tax money to the reconstruction and
maintenance of the railroad.

3 The Commission and Storey County agree that, at the time of the approval of this

Agreement, the Commission has contracted for frain operations between Carson City and Virginia
City. While the Commission and Storey County both believe that the revenues generated from ticket

2




sales will pay for the cost of operation and track maintenance, the Commission and Storey County
recognize that in any month’s period the ticket sales revenue may not be sufficient to cover all of the
operating coss incurred by the Commission. -

The Commission and Storey County agree that for any month of the term of this
Agreement, where ticket sales revenues are insufficient to maintain the Commission’s train
operations or track maintenance expenses, the Commission may withhold, for the purposes of
payment of the costs of train operations and track maintenance, a portion or all of that month’s sales
tax revenues received from the 1/4 of 1 percent sales tax imposed by Storey County.

4. The Commission shall provide written notice to Storey County that all or a portion
of a month’s sales tax revenues must be retained for the purposes of payment of the costs of train
operations and track maintenance as soon as practicable after it learns of a shortfall in ticket sales
revenue.

5. To the fullest extent of Chapter 41 NRS, each party shall indemmnify, hold harmless
and defend, not excluding the other’s right to participate, the other from and against all liability,
claims, actions, damages, lawsuits, and expenses, including but not limited fo reasonable attorney’s
fees and costs, caused by any negligence, error, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct
of any party, its officers, employees and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,
abridge. or otherwise reduce any right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to
any party or person described herein. This indemnification obligation is conditioned upon the
performance of contractual duties by the party seeking indemnification (Indemnified Party), and its
service upon the other party (Indemnifying Party) with written notice of the actual or pending claim
within thirty days of Indemnified Party’s notice of actual or pending claim or cause of action. The
Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for reimbursement of any attorney’s fees and costs incurred
by the Indemnified Party due to said party exercising its right to participate with its legal counsel.

6. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available liability limitations in all cases
as set forth in Chapter 41 NRS. Agreement liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. Actual damages for any breach shall never exceed the amount of funds which have been
identified for payment under this Agreement for each month.

7. This Agreementand the rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Nevada.

8. The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed as if
such provision did not exist. The unenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any
other provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

9. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting
principles full, true and complete records and documents pertairing to this Agreement and present




tothe other party, at any reasonable time, such information for inspection, examination, review, andit
and copying at any office where such records and documentation are kept.

10.  The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent set
forth in this Agreement. Each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the
other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate, control and direct performance
of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement, Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be deemed or construed to create a parinership or joint venture, to create relationships of an
employer-employee or principal-agent, or, except as provided herein, otherwise create any liability
for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the other
agency or any other party.

11. Neither party shall assign, transfer, or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under
this Agreement without the prior written consent of other party.

12. This Agreement shall not become effective unless and until approved by the
appropriate official action of the Commission and Storey County.

13. This Agreement constitutes the entite agreement of the parties and such is intended
as a complete and exclusive statement of the rights, duties, obligations and other agreements that
may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named parties have hereunto set their hands and
executed this Agreement on the date(s) set forth below.

" Dated: May , 2010 : Dated: May 20, 2010
Storey County, Nevada Board of Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of

County Commissioners the Virginia & Truckee Railway

By: i ) , By:

LARD, Chairman

MICHAEL SMILEY ROWE,
General Counsel for the Nevada

Conumnission for the Reconstruction of
the & Truckee Railway




RESOLUTION NO. 10-321

A REOLUTION CONTINUING THE ONE-QUARTER PERCENT
V & T SALES TAX

WHEREAS, In the November 1994 General Election, Storey County voters
voted affirmatively to initiate a one-quarter of one percent sales tax
dedicated to the restoration and start-up cost of the Virginia & Truckee
Railroad between Virginia City and Carson City; and

WHEREAS, On December 9, 1995, the Storey County Commission passed
Ordinance #145 imposing said tax with a sunset date of January 1, 2011;
and

WHEREAS, On June 15, 2011, the Storey County Commission passed
Ordinance 10-229 repealing the sunset clause and allowing for continuation
of said tax conditioned up majority voter approval in the November 2010
General Election; and

WHEREAS, In the November 2010 General Election, Storey County voters
once again voted affirmatively to support continuation of said tax with a
sunset clause of thirty years.

THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County do hereby resolve to extend the continued
collection of a one-quarter of one percent sales tax dedicated to Virginia &
Truckee Railroad projects and as provided for under Nevada Revised Statute
for a period of thirty years commencing January 1, 2011.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 7 day of December, 2010, by the following;
AYES: Kershaw,Flanagan NAYS: None
ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: None

And Signed: VM%—

Greg (B4 Hess, Chairman

< Z
Robert Kerslh_a\"n{,';ji{fgﬁg':af;hairman

-~

Erlene Flahnagan, Qdmmissio

Attested:

1 6D

e

Vanessa Du Fresne, Clerk-Treasurer




Pat Whitten

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Friday, November 01, 2013 10:54 AM

To: dwight, millard (dwight@millardrealty.com)

Cc: Bill Sjovangen (willbison@earthiink.net); Hugh Gallagher; Thomas Gray
Subject: Availability of Funds

Greetings Dwight,

I hope this email finds you relatively content with the conclusion of the latest season for the V&T...at least sans Polar
Express. | am writing to confirm availabiiity of our one-quarter cent funds on deposit with the Rail Commission. While
our Tunnel 6 project is on hold for the time being as we work thru logistical strategies with Tom Gray, we have
continued and increasing interest in acquiring and restoring the Virginia City Freight Depot as well as restoring the Gold
Hill Depot to greater utilization. | anticipate a draw request of most if not all available funds sometime after the first of
the year. Please advise at your earliest convenience as there has been a request for discussion at our upcoming
November 19" Commission meeting. Many thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

powered by: visionASP




ET0T/¥/TT

8y
696'056 ‘
000'0S¢ "AuD eluSaIA Ul Todap Em_mt u_o 311 Jo aseyaund Y] s04 yaew Em._m awn
wco e dulnoudde ‘Aemyiey 119A 3Y3 JO UOIIINIISUOIY BY) 40J UOISSILUWIOY) BpeASN
pue Ayuno) A2101S usamIaq OTOZ ‘0z AeIN palep 1uawaiS3y [edoalul Jad
,, !
696004 Remjiey-A51035 xeL uondg
uonINgLIISI] Xe | S3|es uolexe) Jo Juswpedag epeAsp Jad
06E'SET LELLT 66TLT 0802 69T vez'oz L66'0T €45°TT 6LE0T |
£107 papu3 Jesp Japusje) Jod
S9E'7LT | PIT6T 8Y8'ITT | 06S'TT | £L1'8T 898'WT | €TL'€T | 60L°LT | 8IF'ST | 609VT | 189PT | £97%6 TI8'ZT
B i Z10Z papu3 Jeaj Jspuaje) Jo4
EVP8'P9T | 0S8VT £00°6T 868'ET €E0ET 686'CT T9t'vT 989'pT STt BETTT 0E6'LT 8vL's #6596
TTOZ Popu3 Jea, J3pusjed Jo4
T/E'82T | T120T 0198 T84T 762'TT 9Z8'ET 798 97701 9986 8686 9568 €699 89¢8
TYLOL| Jaqwedag| JaquaroN| Jaqowo| Jsquisidas 1sn3ny Alnp aunr ABIN [dy yosey| Adeniga4.  Alenuer
0T0Z papu3 1eaj Japuaje) 1o4|

AVMTIVYE 33XINYL ANV VINIDHIA
XV1 NOILdO
ALNNOD AFHOIS




Nicole Barde 775-299-4;
- 226

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

p.1

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established 2 policy for piacement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all

sepporting documentation at the time the reguest is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on fthe Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (ltems received after the deadline will be pleced on

the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: (O [_{5 [ 201> . |DateRequest Submitted: < [9_9'/2,9, =

Agenda Item Requested: AT pus of fu Canmy Sy TAy Fonds ~ Does

“— ETeRey Coonly Phaye USe of e Sunds  Tor 8L Thnn<d

This item is intended fof- Discussion Only . Discussion and Action (af the Board's discretion)

Supporting docomentation is attached No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Dicole " £62D =

(please print name clearly)

Address: | |( o (loBe Bomh, /O Pl

Phoner )<, dog- 22 6 Email {optional): UDWQ Bl CTorn

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office s ’
PO Drawer D torey Commty Clerk’s Office

. s 775 -
Virginia City NV 89440 (725) 8470021




Nicole Barde 775-299-4226 p.1

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in wiiting, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting., (Jtems received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting. )

Date of Meeting: November 16th Date Request Submitted:9/2 4/13 originally

Agenda Item Requested: Status of ¥ cent sales tax fimds passed by ballot in 2010 —Does Storey County
have use of these funds for the Railroad tunnel. Additionally, why wasn’t the possibility of never seeing
these funds ( per the interlocal agreement signed prior to the election) added to the against argument on
the ballot. Additionally why wasn’t the need to issue bonds, and potentially pay interest with no tunnel
also disclosed on the ballot in fill disclosure to the voters.

This item is intended for: [_] Discussion Only [] Discussion and Action (af the Board's discretion)

[_] Supporting documentation is attached [] No supporting documentation is Tecessary

Requested by: _Nicole Barde

{please print name clearly)

Address: 110 Globe Road, VC Highlands

Phone:775-299-4226 Email (optional)nbarde@aot.com

Please submit this completed form to: _
or FAX to:

Storey County Clerk’s Office

PO Drawer D
Virginia City NV 89440

Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

= Lo Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - ~ - - B

For Office Use Only

Date Request Received: | | /5 / | % | Received: [] In Person E Via FAX By: C\E

[] Supporting docamentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item: 1| / 19




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/1913 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motign; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5, Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: , None

District Attorney

3. Reviewed by: -
x__ Departmen

e

Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
e ]

Agenda Item No. I 5




Storey County Community Development
Buginess § »

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office November 7, 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the November 19, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A.

w

H

= o

€C.

HET O

.

FLEETWOODGOLDCOWYARD, INC. - Contractor / 8020 Forsyth Blvd ~ St. Louis, MO
{machine manufacturer and installer for Ardagh)

PACIFIC MAT’L HANDLING SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 30361 Whipple Road ~ Union City, CA
(service, sales and rental of lift trucks)

ALFONS HAAR - Contractor / 150 Advanced Drive ~ Springboro, OH
(machine manufacturer and installer for Ardagh)

MARIO FLORES GONZALEZ -~ Home Business / 3200 Cartwright (Attorney) VCH

SOLAR SYSTEMS MECH, LLC - Contractor / 670 Professional Ave ~ Henderson (HVAC Cont.)

SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC — Contractor / 2600 N Central Expwy ~ Richardson, TX
{(environmental services)

POSDCORB, LC - General / 108 Garden Gate Way ~ Carson City (Consultant)

WIDE OPEN - General / 1777 Per Drive (off-road tours and racing) TRI

Inspection Required

Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Deyv. Assessor’s Office




Correspondence




SRR

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Ifé’fﬁflméqmt;

ST { {Jf VY LUHMT
The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for place;nent of‘ 1t§ms on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made? wﬁt%%%,.an%mclude all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted. uty
The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Ttems received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: i / 14 / J 3 Date Request Submitted:  // / //3

Agenda Item Requested: MiRlp. 7040 Hdpoisory Boald Ant MARE
TIBAN CoMman 1 =04
This item is intended for; I:] Discussion Only [:Z/DISCUSSIOII and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

'[] Supporting documentation is attached [ No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Jeact Z—FU-W{’S

(please print name clearly)
Address: 93§ Epcryy Lo ) D&u?r'fé?\ " AV
Phone: “79¢ . 39 7- 4 ¢3¢ | Bmail (optional): heute 238 & C?,;,w“‘/ Con
' 7

Please submit this completed form to: "
or FAXtof, = =

Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D Storey County C

Virginia City NV 89440

+— . Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope
Date Request Received: Recelved [:] In Person [} ViaFAX By:
[1 Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this itern:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org




Vanessa Dufresne
. IR

A R
From: Pat Whitten
Sent: Monday, November 04, 2013 9:36 AM
To: Vanessa Dufresne
Cc: Bill Sjovangen (willbison@earthlink.net); Marshall McBride; Lance Gilman; Bill Maddox;
Austin Osborne
Subject: Houts Agenda Reg.
Attachments: Houts Agenda 1113.pdf

Vanessa,

Under Storey County Administrative Policy and Procedures #008; Section 1 (a), | am going to deny placement of this item
on the agenda. There is not substantial clarity as to what Ms. Houts wishes to discuss nor what action may or may not be
contemplated. Ms. Houts can either pursue Policy alternative 1 (b} or discuss her thoughts during the “Public Comment”
portion occurring toward the conclusion of the meeting. Please place a copy of this email, together with her request in
the correspondence portion of the November 19" meeting packet. Thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten -
County Manager From:
Storey County Vanessa

. Dufresne
(775) 847-0968 (Office) Sent:
= (775) 721-7001 (Cell) Monday,
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org Novembe
powered by: visionASP r 04’
2013

8:32 AM

To: Pat Whitten

Subject: Agenda Req.

Received Friday from Janet Houts,

A

From: printers@storeycounty.org [mailto:printers@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Monday, November 04, 2013 8:31 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne
Subject: Attached Image




for The oct;z'»'t' et Wg i Ao v.0 3

10,@7~13
T £T Rom W@K«%’/J\ M T-

—_—

£ Lost The form e ewd" e /ma»qfr%- %rm:/k‘rﬁwé

"__._.-_.d
/Ht/ ﬂ’lh‘fcﬁ ey Vo AY.,

or 5’554/5‘5/0%/?/#1‘/({ fos S/ZL: #‘C‘-//‘/d’-’V

%’ff ? ZMPL@(A\OQJ Waﬂ‘L (‘,0«/1/\)1'\1 49&),1/0; T}QA’]L@O_/

aﬁe@?’/ww/ waﬁfg /Je—wée, iﬂé%mémm'ﬂ%w;g of

V‘OPA‘H/Q/ g

3 r Cée;Cu\qu:Df\J/pofgljéZ—& /a—ml'z;u”i7 CdMﬂ\ém?Ar{—"(Q'/‘/ R <.

Free powel. vC% Fho direchrgf ﬂué/m{ oorks  pu Thelr

I3 .A/-t?,){.f- L’v /L‘f\p Fme ai@ﬂ: é@)/@(/ﬂ/ef The C[l‘f‘ﬂ'd“'“ 3\3 veﬂ',

wel {6’;4-10( Lor /'7'// hyis ff%"tj &Mg 5[\9@/5/ éLfﬂé/r‘—%Q/G{

ot e SAme gs wa]‘/ﬁpeﬂpéz Frose Joven o~
1“”\ @@e !Dr)huOﬂ_ \@h e,u&';.ﬁ QNQG

T plte to faoe fwo (Cems e poh meatirg I

é;P,Ll‘eV‘e [6 /“_?wf@.iw ﬁ./&fﬁ cz’(ﬂe/‘-@/CZ ‘ﬂp clz %55;5-4/

//ws'g/&%. A"c/f'eowv ,55&5% qv?ﬂ 50 e /’é_{ ﬁe,o/,gdf_ CpAr
§§ﬂe/rk opr /9765&8 o et L. c/vwc;ﬁ,

Cba/af L Le JZA‘?—eﬁl = @A&/J/Q/ QQQ Sﬂ“f?%&@ﬁéf

] /
2 45 C@f—&ﬂﬂ—; ()T @’Yz /%J . T ymproce /’164771 COMMW«?@

u(ew f boave 8’79Me,m~c? Fo me_psf:%f 5. /SSyes w&o_c/_s"

gﬁed L:q Ao C!-f‘/@"lﬁ/‘&';f[!& é,mk@w wilen et (o

jé’A’—P—K 4n-a£ o e T2 WUQS 75,41 Come </ e d?%/wf?e@

MQZ-JL:A/GIJ




_\_Ianessa Dufresne

——

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Monday, November 04, 2013 9:56 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Cc: Bill Maddox; Bill Sjovangen (willbison@earthlink.net); Marshall McBride; Lance Gilman;
Mike Nevin

Subject: RE: Agenda Request from Dale Beach

Attachments: Beach Agenda Request 1113.pdf

Vanessa,

Under Storey County Administrative Policy and Procedures #008; Section 1 (a), | am going to deny placement of both
items on the agenda. Storey County does not possess or maintain records as to which employees do or do not purchase
propane from Ferrell Gas nor could we determine if the price those that do are paying versus others in the County. As to
his request to further discuss our Public Works Director’s use of power and parking, that issue has been previously
placed on the October 1, 2013 agenda and the matter has been resolved. Mr. Beach can either pursue Policy alternative
1 (b} or discuss his thoughts during the “Public Comment” portion occurring toward the conclusion of the meeting. The
latter also pertains to his closing request to discuss the “Mark Twain Improvement Committee”. Please place a copy of
this email, together with his request in the correspondence portion of the November 19" meeting packet. Thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

Bt

> (775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 {Celi)
PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org

To: Pat Whitten
Ce: Bill Maddox
Subject: Agenda Request from Dale Beach

Please find attached an agenda request received from Mr. Beach.
Thank you, Vanessa

From: printers@storeycounty.org [mailto:printers@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, October 08, 2013 2:06 PM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Subject: Attached Image

powered by: visionASP

From:
Vanessa
Dufresne
Sent:
Tuesday,
October
08, 2013
2:07 PM




